Court File No.

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

IN THE MATTER OF Sirﬁcoe Condominium Corporation Number 32

Applicant

AFFIDAVIT OF MINA LAWRENCE,
SWORN DECEMBER /4, 2011

I, MINA LAWRENCE, of the City of Orillia, in the County of Simcoe, MAKE

OATH AND SAY:

I.

I am the president of Simcoe Condominium Corporation Number 32 (hereafter

“SCC 327) and as such have knowledge of the matters hereinafter deposed to.

SCC 32 was established in 1980. It was established as a time share condominium.
.I\l/Iy understanding is that it is only one of a handful of time share condominiums
in Canada and that it was one of the first time share condominiums in Ontario.
The unit owners own their unit outright; it is not a leasehold arrangement of 40
years and the like as exists with the vast majority of time shares that are common

today.

Attached as Exhibit “A” to this my affidavit is a copy of the Declaration for the

condominium, as registered on title.

In the last few years there has been a slow erosion in the sale of condominium
units. Some owners have stopped paying their condo fees, There was one

operator which had a number of units and when they went bankrupt they handed



all their units back. Attached as Exhibits B, C and D to this my affidavit are the
audited financial statements for SCC 32 for the years 2008, 2009 and 2010,

respectively,

As the business slowed SCC 32 began to cut back on some of the services it was
offering such as shorter hours for the pool, less intensive landscaping, fewer hours
for the staff and the like. SCC 32 tried to drum up sales however the tide has not
been turned.

In 2010 we as a board became concerned about the long term viability of SCC 32
on account of the slowly deteriorating financial status. As a result a letter was
circulated to the perspective purchasers cautioning about the condominium

to this my Affidavit is copy of that

corporation’s status. Attached as Ev
letter.

In 2011 the board sought advice from the corporation’s accountant, Jack Booth,

C.A. The board also sought advice from Morgan & Associates and specifically

John Morgan, a chartered accountant and trustee in bankruptcy as to options for
- SCC 32.

SCC 32 is solvent and has healthy reserves. The condominium corporation has no
debt. That said, it is in a slow decline and the board does not believe we are in a
position to pull out of that. The options are therefore trying to either rebuild
interest in the condominium, or wind down the condominium and sell the assets
now on terms that the owners find desirable and may result in a distribution rather
than awaiting an eventual distress situation. Based on the current situation it is

unlikely the condominium corporation can be kept operating through 2013.

The board did not want to make such a substantial decision without consulting

with the owners. Therefore an information package was assembled and delivered
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to the owners and they were asked to cast a ballot as to what they wished to see
happen with the condoniinjum, i.e. sell it or attempt to continue operating. The

results were as follows:

Total number of possible votes 2,193

Yes votes from owners 1,255
Yes votes from SCC 32 369
No votes from owners 60
Number of persons not voting 509

We also broke down the voting on a unit by unit basis. Attached as Exhibit “F”
to this my Affidavit is a tally of the yes votes on a unit by unit basis. The board
of course has no definite way of knowing how the 509 persons who did not vote
at all feel, however on such a matter I doubt that they would have stayed silent if
they wished to see the condominium corporation carry on. [ have been a member
of the condominium ever since 1980 and as a result [ know a great many of the
people who have units here. To almost everyone I spoke with there seemed to be

a sense of inevitability about the sale of the condominium.

10.  While the board is satisfied with the validity of the vote the board is not content to
| rely upon the vote as the sole authority for placing SCC 32 up for sale. The
board’s unanimous preference is for a judicially authorized process under s. 128
of the Condominium Act. We believe this is the only way the sale can be done in
an orderly manner and if some owners take issue with the sale process then there

is a judicial process to deal with objections in a timely and fair manner.
SALE
11. So as to be in a position to conduct this sale in a logical and prudent manner the

board sought out real estate appraisers to give the board an opinion on a

reasonable market value for the property. Four different appraisers with were
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13.

contacted and given an opportunity to provide an outline and quote for their
services. The following firms were asked to provide quotes for appraisals:
Scanlon & Associates; CBRE Hotels; Canada Appraisals; and Cushman &
Wakefield. Canada Appraisals was not interested in the file. The board’s initial
desire was for Scanlon and Associates, who are a local firm to perform the
appraisal. However, Mr. Scanlon’s quote was for $25,000.00 compared to the
other three firms who all quoted in the $8,000.00 to $9,000.00 range. Attached as
Exhi ’ to this my Affidavit is a copy of the proposal from Cushman

Wakefield Ltd. for their services. It is not the board’s intent to disclose the results
of the appraisal but rather to use it as a guide in establishing a value and to weigh

it against any offers received.

Several area real estate agents were canvassed to provide a marketing propoéal for
the property. Unfortunately from the response it appeared there was less interest
in taking on this listing as the board hoped. Proposals were received from two
local real estate agents, namely Roger Selman and Harold Holmes both with

Century 21 although different area offices. Attached as Exhibit.

Affidavit is a copy of Mr. Selman’s proposal I have omitted his hard copy of a

power point presentation and redacted his recommended list price. Attached as

17 to this my Affidavit is a copy of Mr. Holmes’s proposal.

During our discussions with Cushman Wakefield, their appraiser Charles Suddaby
stated to the board that their realty arm would also be interested in the listing. We
were put on to Mr. Curtis Gallagher of Cushman Wakefield who also set out their
marketing proposal within the above referenced quote. Furthermore Cushman

Wakefield offered that if they received the listing and they were the listing agent

at the time of any sale, they would credit back the appraisal cost from the

commission. After some discussion the board decided that Cushman Wakefield
Ltd. would be the most appropriate listing agent; however at this point, Cushman
Wakefield is requesting an exclusive listing. The board is therefore going to

consider narrowing the exclusive period, and if that cannot be done, is not ruling
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15.

our Mr. Selman or Mr. Holmes as an alternative. Attached as Exhibit “I” to this
my Affidavit is the Listing Agreement we are prepared to execute with Cushman

Wakefield, subject to the court’s approval and subject to the above.

MORTGAGES

Back when Inducon Development Corporation (“Inducon™) was marketing SCC
32, Inducon was offering mortgages to finance the purchase. Several mortgages
remain on title to various units, and those are set out in a schedule attached as

“K” to this my affidavit. Inducon went bankrupt in 1992. Attached as

, 2 to this my affidavit is a Bankruptcy and Insolvency Search reflecting
this. T believe that these mortgages are simply remnants on title, long agté; paid
off, but discharges never actually registered. I am advised by Barb Burton who
worked for the former solicitors for SCC #32 (the firm of Bourne Jenkins &
Mulligan) and 1 believe that they could never get the trustee to respond to requests
for discharges. In some situations owners were resorting o allowing their condo
fees to go into arrears and SCC would lien and power of sale units, to clear title. I

ask these mortgages be deleted from title.

There are 2 private mortgages on title, one probably either a vendor take back or
an interfamily loan and the other appears to be an interfamily matter. Attached as

Exhibit M

to this my affidavit is a copy of the said instruments. If a
discharge cannot be obtained by the unit owners, I ask for an Order it be deleted
from title, if necessary with an Order that no distribution be made to the unit

owner without a further Order, or the agreement of the mortgagee.

CONDOMINIUM LIENS

16.

There are a number of condominium lens registered on title as instrument number
217179 to 217254. These date from the trustee having liened units owned by

Inducon in favour of SCC 32. We are attempting to delete these liens ourselves,



o

but if we cannot do so for any reason, I ask for an order permitting them to be

deleted from title.

17.  I'make this Affidavit in support of an Application and for no other or improper

purpose.

Sworn Before me a the

City of Orillia, in the County

of Simcoe, this / Q day

of December, 2011.

| i

A Co is%'ﬁoner, ete.
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| The'Sth day of January, 1980 by

2. Consent of Mertgzgees

. owner <In. quesum k. entitled s usakf‘-md occupy'sﬂd cunkt pursuant
. Agrument. .

6

e ex:lusivo usa th_

\
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DECLARATION

© MADE PURSUANT TO THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1978 -

:_INOUCDN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 2 .
. corporation lncorponted under the laws: of the
Prov[nce of Ontariu, ’

k -hereinaftw cai!ed the 'Declarant"

Sutammt of lntent

‘which flﬂy~threa (53) ‘wnits Have beeh buﬂt ‘be govermd by The Condomlnlum Act, 1978 as :
amended {the FAct®) and that the terms mcd herefn have the same mezntrlg as In the Act,

unless ot!-:rw!:e :peclﬁad._i___t S S

Y

S The consents of per:.ons hav[ng re;inered mort;aps zzzinst the Izruis or lnterntx\
appumnant o mc Iznds are amaxad here:o i Schedu!c 'B‘ R T S,

hereto.
4o Co_mmm.'.aw_m'

- The common In:etest apponenant “to  sach -unlt, mpectiuiy, 'axprumd in-
perconuxu. shal! be . sat out in Schodule 1D, annexed haruo- L : R o

The proportions in which the owners of ‘the unlt: -3re, m ‘contribute “to common :

‘ uxpcnss, respectivaly, exprmed in’ percendiges,. ‘shall be 23 set out In Schadule tLe mad;‘: L

hereto. Provided ‘that_in_the case of any. tnit to whfch section, 9 hem 3 “nma‘ Sharad,.-
Unit*) 2nd 5o fong as ‘sald m:tion zppliu thcrem B, rwm of the axHtence of - Tlm" Sharing -
Agrcemom 43 doicribed. “therein, ma‘uamnmo . OWDNGT - holdhg in In suchiaunitas .
a tenant.in_common_shall be I!mitod to,_ 1. 9608% - (IISI} of the commen a:fpma chargsd to the:

unlt multipl[ed by the mumber of Weeks' (2s doﬂmd In the Time Sharing Agraamea:] thit the
Time S!urlﬂz‘ 4

Cnmmnn Expomas Speclﬂcztim

e Hel
The comm .oxpemas

dutles of ths Corpon:!on md the axpemses l!'tad In Schadula 'E'Vamexed herato.
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8. Occugatlon and Us
8.1 -, Ne. dnlt or K!mlted commeon clcment shail be usad !n such 3 manmner: as to

constitirte 3. muisance. t the owssrs of other Units, but the normal use of (1y Unlts 1, 2, 3,4,
25,76, 27, 28 and 29 Level [ for restaurant, bmquu: hali, hbotel lobby, washroom, retali,
coemmercial o, ‘adminlstrativa purpeses, {I1}. Unic. !5 Leovel [ for swimming pool -and recreational
purposes and (Jti) other units for shor: term private occupancy, shatl rm be deemad i

nu[unce.

!n no avam shall any unlt be usad En such ‘manner as - m glvu :isc 1o the

8.2

cznca!luion or threat of cznccllatlon of zn-y pnllcy of Insurance nulnt:!nad by the Corporatlon.
g s:ies, Glits and Lems of Tirme Shared Units” 7

9.t The provialom of . thls Soctlén.’§ shall apply to ‘each of Unlts' 5 to 14 (both

Inclusive} and 16 10 24 (both Inglisive). Level .l and 1 t0 24 (both Inclus[vo) Leval 2 (*’rrm

" Shared Units*}) so long 25 thers Is In effact with Fespect to the unit In- guastion an agrsement

{*Time Sharing Agroummt') allocating tha right of possasslon of the Time Shared Unlt

_betwesn or among persons holding title to the unlt as tomants in common, and so long s notics

of such Time thrlng Agrocmem is reglstered ‘agalnst the titls to atch unlt.

.‘,9 2. ' 1: Is :m lntent of - the provisions “of this Scction 9 that ‘these hcldlng ul:lo o a

Time. Shared Unlt as temants in common $iall be at [berty to sell, make 2 ‘gift of or lazse
their Interest provided . the person so acquiring. their. intersst or any part thersof 2grses to be
bound by the pravisions of the Time Sharing. A;rumont in a form satistactory to the Managor

namsd [n or mporm‘.od under such zgreemam.

9.3 - Nn parson ownln; an lnterast ln 2 T‘ime Shared Unit or hzvin; a po\ver to sell or

appolnt such .interest, - shall sell or glve, by afny means, such Interest or past thoreof to any
persen, nor shall any pcrson so acquire such an Entnrcst, without the \vrl!tun msen: of the

Manager named In.or. 1ppofntod under ‘the. provhlom of; the Tima' Sharing’ Amemnnt zppﬂczble

‘o wch Undt (thc 'Manxgar’).‘ This provisiun shall_not apply to sﬂcs by the Dnclarant.

9.4 The comom cf “the. Mamger shzll bt g!\mn n ary cise wheru it l: required undor |
Sectlon 9.3 or. whers it may otherwise be- requostud where the persom. asqulring #n Interast In a
Time Shared Unit, while. legally- compatent to do so,. entsrs into an Agraemam te adhers to
and be bound by 'the provisions of the Time Sharing Agrcemem:. Such A;nement {to b known
as an Assumption Agreement). shall be in the form. annexed a3 Schedule "G* ‘subject to ‘such
changes, .additions or. delations.as may be approud from_ ﬁme to.tima by or on, bahalf of the
Mznager, such. :ppronl to . be conr.iuslvaiy evldencuf by __axucutlon nf . the Aswmptkan
Aﬁ“aamentbymuMmger. T T

9.5 .
Unlt, . shait bo entored into. or, take  effact _without the. -prior, written comom of the Manager
which shail not be withheld providcd tha lasses, subleisae of. occupmt agreos.in, ‘writing [n torm
satisfactory to the Manager to abide by the provisions of the Time Sharing Agreemant whlie In
ocr.upmon of. the - unlt, to the sime, axtant 3 vmuld ba mpxlred from the Owner... ,

9.5 oo No' person shall .uss'ur occupy 3 Ttmo thrad Unit, ‘& b entltied to: enfarce. any'
right to use or occupy a Time Sharsd Unit, however acqulrod agalnst other persons own[ﬂg an

'1ntnrest therain or asalnst the Mamger, unless he Is.

Ay a. garty to .2 Tlma Sha,ring Agroomm in effect at thc dme with respoct to :hs_
rTlmu Slm'ed Unlt' o . . ; i e et

'(ll} ;1 pcnon whose 1:mlsltlnn of an imarast h:s bcen comen'ad to by the Mmzser 'u

. ey 2% .
(i) -2 person hose _entitlement. to use and occupy the Unir under 2 leass, suhtusa cr'

'g"_,;' S zgrumunt has been; con:entad m b-y tha Manager undar Sectinn 9.5;

{Iv) -'a . porson,. anm:ud g, use and occupatiort under z.rrmxuments appruvud by the
© Manager for the axchange of short term rights of occupation between of | xmmg-
. owners md parsons holding simtlar rl;hts In pmjccts tocsz elmwhere, ,or‘ R

"(vl)r the Duchrarrt, s swccessors oF assfgns, of any person permitud by them 2o
occupy the Time Shared Unit as a hotel guest, but such occupancy shatl ot
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1

'affs'ct‘my Time Sharing Agreement' '
of unless he. i A member af thn f:ml!y ur a gucst uf an Indivldual pormn refarred ‘to ln Itcms'
(1) to (v) incluslva. . .

0. Lum of Uiits oﬂ!er thm Time. Sharcd Units

= 10.1 : No per:on shaEI entar hm iease, sub{usa or zgreement in the nature thareof.
’ affec:lng any “unlt ‘nor- sha[l ‘any” person occupy or usa 1 unit puvsaant to such a lease sublease
or azraamant in !he naturn_ ereof :m[ass' : . :

[a)', Sectron 9.5 apptias and Is cumplied with; L

{b) L thc !essee, sublnswo or” pmon ‘entitled to occupaﬂon agress in writing with tha
L -Corporatlon te b bound by and subject to all the obligations of the Unit mer
ar!slng utidar the' Act, this Doclaration, the By-—laws antdfor the Rules. -

.

n . Duﬂes of Cog_:grztlon ; -

i . in addition to its dutics under the Act, the Corporatlon shall hxve the followlng

duties which are’ specified in rccogni:ton. amaeng othqr thlngx, of the !ntonded uso’ of t.th B
- properyy: : ’

-J

(z} the chny to enter Into Time Sharing Amomems as-deffned in Saction 9.I for the

" purpess of providing residual or supervisory - services.to owners-of - Time Shared
Unlts including 3 mesns of replacing the Managsr and the Clud Administrater -
thereuridar znd of raqulﬁng audits of Manager's accounts if and whan m'cuixry; '

(b)  the duty to appoint and at all times to have 2 manager of the Comoratlcn {who
] ‘may,. but need not necassarlly be, the sams penon 23 the Managar or Club
Admfnls::r:tnr undcr Time Sharfng A;raumems), :

fe) :hn duty to ‘onter lnm and at all tlmas malnu!n an lnsunncu trust amcmmt wi:h
‘2’ Teust Company nsis:orod urder The Loan & Trust Corporatlons ‘Act, or 2
Chartered Bank o In: 'the  ovent such ‘institutions rafuse to ‘zct, such other
cnrporztkm o institution ‘a1 may be ‘authorfZed to act 28 an Imsurance trustes.
Such lgrwment shall. provide “that the trustes shall held all Insurance procesds In
trust and shall disburse the proceeds to the Corpont!cm or the ownar for the
purpose of paylng costs ncurred In connuction with fulfilment of their respactive
obligations to repair or, In the event of termination of the Condofninium, the -
trustee shall disburss the pmcnd: to’ the gwners and their raspoct!ve mortgzgees‘
as thelr intercsu appur- .

{d) the duty to pay lh.hlllt[es, costs and aatpenses for whlch owners are requlrcd to
- make r.ontrlbutions as Common Expnrlsu under thc Act or this Dochntlm, and

_{s8) the duty tn hald 2 mnﬂng of owners s s00n 25, prac:iczbie followiag registutiun
© of the Declaration 1o’ slect dlnctm of tha Cerpmﬂcn ‘and o do such other acts
or things as way be. nocessary ‘or desirable In-connaction with the organization of -
the Corporation. . The. mutln; may be wtthout notice. to o'h‘nen L a!l owners.
w:ivu notlce theruof. 3,. B o o

{f) the duty ‘30 Eon; as :}m Decl;nnt, its successors and asst;ns, pmvlda ﬂm
services referred- to In this subparagraph, to enter into ‘and- maintain in affect an
" agreement “or agreemonts with ithe Declarant, . its succasson ‘o zsslps, provldlng;fﬁ .
. for nntuw “sewer; sarvice’ 1 "'propsrty, imalntenance of bcar.hus on. Block ‘A -
CPlan, M—-II! milntenance’ of ° hgoons _water “ways and canals’ in the duvulopmen‘:.

it e e Tand e T

:f - known s Lagoon Clty and for payment af chzrges inl connectim merew{th. N ;
‘\ 12, Rapﬂr After Dam:ga znd lentanancu e - \[
r 1241 7 Each owner shall sub]ect to sec:!on 4’! of the Act, rnpalr his unit after dange. .( N ;

12.2 o The owner of Unft I Leva! ] shal[ mzim‘aln and repalr a.fter dama;q t.hq Nmited

common elerant numbared F-I on Sheet 3 of Pm ] of the Description reghtared concurram:ly '
herawith. ) .

P
7.
H
e
P
¥




8. . Address -

: Untlr dul'y chanpd, the Corponthm’a addrass for urvice and the ma!llns :d:!ms
shzﬂ be 250 Consumm Road. Wlllowdxlc 'Ont:rio, M} 4VE... : o

4. L4 ntergroutfnn

. Tho -usa - of . 1ho mucuﬁne gender !n the Dachratlon malt be danmad 0 rnfnr to
tha feminine or neuter and the uss of the singular shall be-deemed to rafar to the plural nd
vice -versa whenever the contsxt so rsqulrns. The headtnss In. the body of the Daclaratlcn ire
insartad for eise- of reference’ only :nd da:not form: pm of the Declant[m

- [ under-the h

i e o v prre
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' Pruvlnco. of Onurlo, :and_belng’ compesed” of Lot-2. and Block E- acr:orchng to.x, phn rezistered n -

SUBJECT TO i, dealnage

s i

ST

SCHEDULE A

Coe Lngl] descriptlon m’
" Harbairr Tnn Lands
. dnlageon Clty

Those lands located In the Towmhlp of Mara, I the Cour;ty of Simcos 2hd

‘.‘-thn La.nd Raglstry ff[ce for, tha Lz.nd Tlt!es Dlvlsion uf Simtoe (No -5l

the Township. of M.ura over
hthf Southariy |a fast: of uld Lo: 2, a3 5ot csut In Trxnsfar ot Euamants No. 20[8‘.2. L

SUBJECT ALSO TO an easament for sawers, water ma!ns and tﬂins In favour of Tha Corpor—

ation of the Township of Mara In, undor and upon that part of said Lot 2 dailgnttod as Part |
an Flan wa-sls a sat om ln Transfer of Easemants No. 25729

SUBJEC? ALSO TO n ezsemem for w:ter m:lm In'favnur of Har Ma}esty the Qunnn ln ng}\t
of Ontarlo as "Represented by the- Minister of’ the Environment on, in, "across, under. and
- through that part of said Lot 2 deslgmted u Pirt ! on Pla.n WR-316, a5 set out In. Tr:nsfcr of

Easements No. 18645. .

SUBJECT TO an easoment for sewers and deaing In favaur of The Corporatlon of the Township
of Mara in, under and upon the wimle nf sa!d Block E u set out ln Transfer cf Euomsnt No.
13876+ . S . ..

SUBJECT ALSO TO an sassment and right-of-way In famr of Her Ma]asty m Ouun In Right

of Canada as Repruscn:od by the Minister of Publle Works tpon, over; iunder. along and 2cross e

that part of sald Block E Included in Pa.rt toon Ptm 40R-!754, as ut. out in Trznsfar of
Ezsamant No. #-603. S - T s - B

SUBJECT AL.SO TO a rlxht—of-wny In favour of Her' M.a]csty ﬂm Quonn in Rl;ht of Onurfn a8
Represented by the Minister of tha Envimnment ovar all cef said Bloclt E ‘as 18t out In -Transfer
of Rlzht—of—-Way MNo. 2!]3!. . . . . . } ’

SUB]ECT ALSO TO an easament: for nn!tary SeWers ln favour of Her szcs:y “the Quun o
Right of Ontarlo as Rapresented by the Minister of the Environment o, In, across, under and
through that part of sald Bleck E designated as Parts 3 and 7 on Plan SiR-7215, as set out In

Transfer of Emments Ne. !8645.

SUBJECT ALSO' TO an ezsament for water malns in favour-of Her leasty the Queen In Right
of Ontaric 25 Represented by the Minister of the Environment on, in, across, under and
through those parts of sild Block E designated as Pam 4 and 5 on Pun SlR—'nIS as sat olt In
Transfer of Easemants No. 23279. . )

SUBJECT ALSO TO an aascmant for nnltm sower and water’ mains In favour of Her Mtjmy
the Queen In Right of Ontarlo as Reprasented by the Minister of the Envirooment on, In,
Cacross, under and through that part of said Blacx E desiznned 3 Pzrt 3 on Plan 51R-72|5,
set aut In Transfar of Euements No. 23279.

TOGETHER ALSO WITH a &:inzgc ‘swale easament over tat part of Lot I, PQn:M—III.
deslgmted as Part | on Plan 51R-3502 as set.out in Trznsfer of Euemsnt No. 25025. )
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FORM.7..THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1978 -

. _THE MUNICIPAL- SAVINGS & LOAN ORPORATION, having 2~ re‘xlptered :

- mortgage -within the:meaning of. clause. {b) .of subsection 1" of Section 3 of.The Condomlnium
Act; 1978 registered:is. Instrument No.. 25301 in the Land Reglistry Offics for the Land Titles
Divisian: of Simeoe {No. "51) “at Barre, hereby consents to the vegistration. of this Declaration

‘pursuant’.to The Condominiuri Act, 1978 -aginst the lad. or intereste appurtsnant to the Jand .

) _-du'scl‘ibod in the ‘descriptlon. " vcriv i

B

o




- Unlts 5 i H !ncluslva md Uniu 16 10 24 Inciuslve Level and Units | to 24 fncfusive Levei 2

R T ittt W e

- to more than one (1) ;unit) but. shali inclide such™pipes,
B appu:tm thzt supp['y any servlco t6a plnlculzr unlt anly.

 Septomber 13, 1979,

SCHEDULE "C“ TO DECLARATION

’ Tbe monuments . cantrulllng the extunt md lou:ion of the unlrs ara the phy;lc:l
'surﬁcns as daflnad hsrs!n. L L - ;

Unm Tto 4 lnciuslve, and Unm 25 m 29 nclesive Laval I 7 -

: Tho backs[dc fz::c of the drywail on a!l axterior wzll:. -

4, _fThc unf’fnished interlor surfacw of zJI uxterlor doors, door frames, and w!nduw
' . framas and er irrterlor surfaca of a!l glass panels thergit, . .

: 5. In umts Land 2 and~un!t 27 tha Vertlcaj phne. Sald p]ana ls illustratod on sheet
«: ' Vpart I of thn Dﬁcription ﬂled concurrsntly herewfth.

6 In the recessed sntry portion of unm | md 2 tho unit shall oxtend to thc plane )
" }nlnlng the backside fuu of the drywa]i a.t tha aforaslld rocassed ponlon.. e

].- . Thc upper surface uf lha mﬁnlshcd c'oncreta f!oor slab..
2. . The upper ﬂ_cc, uf the cplllng deywall,’ ‘
3. The backside faca of the drywall on all exterlor walls.

4.  The unf]nlshod Interfor surfaces of all exterlor doors, door frzmes, and wlndow
E frames and the interior surfu:e of 2l ghs: pznah thernln.

5. All ﬁreplx:as (pre-fzbrlc::ed), flues, vents, and eqnlpment appurtenant thereto
) . shal]l be part of each unit _whather - tatally within the ‘unit or within part ‘of the
common a!aments.

_ Unit 5 Level f:

‘l. The wpper surface of the. unflnished concrete floor slab and the unit side
unfinished face of concrate wal[s and battom of the swimming pool 2nd whirlpoo!
structures.” :

2. The Iowcr untinished surface of the Iamlnatnd woodm cﬂl!ing of the upper fzce of
the drywall where appllcablm .

- ——— "

3. The bzckslde face of l.ha drywa.]l on alf extarlnr walis.

N 'l"he unﬂnishacf Irmrlor surfacu of all utoriur doors, door frames, and wlndow '
- frzmu znd rhe Interlor mrfaca of aII ghis panels thersin. .

5. AII oqulpmcnt pemlnlng to the opcrztfm and use . nf this racrut!m f:.cmty
whethor wuhin thn ualt or “within thc common o[um&nts shall be dcomed part of
the unlt. : . . '

"Notwlthstzndlng the ;bove, dw “imit: shall not lnclude  such - columm and ]
lcadburlng walls, plpey, wires, cablas, _ﬁuos, “and similar _dpparatus. that - suppiles | Ay scrvlca_?
wires, cables, ﬁuos and’ slmllar‘ :

All of whlc Iy iHus:r;:ﬂd En,:hc _Dpsu_‘lptio}n'.ﬂlcd-;r;qncurfén'tly-he{';ﬁ['ih

TH; Fltm o.a_.s.u‘
. Flim

) Oriurlo Land Surveyor '
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SCHEDULE "E" TO DECLARATION

. Common Expensos fncluda the folluw}ng, wftnout llmlting the sonarai mun!r:g of such term In

the Acr a.nd th:s Dechratlon

{a)

(8)

{e}

(a)
' (a):
. m"

(5}

{1}

_.all prumlums and’ other charges, If any, with rcspec’t to lnsurance obulned or malntalned

- “by;the Corporatlon, an |ts awn behzlf and,’or o’ behalf of the Owners; -

A‘feas and ch:rges cf znv Imurance trustee

accountlng, audtt, legal and other professional costs :nd expenses incurred by the
Corporation, ’

fccs payabie to tha Bureau csuhnshcd under The Condominlum Act, 1578;
fnes and ou: of pockn: expansei pavahle ta the Mmzxar appointed by tha Corporatim

'casts nf waste disposzl wztur and c]uctrlciry Incurred wim raspect to or levied wpon the
Unlts andfor Common Elements, except to the: extest, i any, that such gosts zre
chzrged dirﬂc:ly to tha Owners by the corporation or utiﬂn,r mppiylng same;

'baac.h md cmz! mzlntenmce ch:rges.lav}ad on or p:nbla with respect to the Unln and
Common Elements, ' ’ .

costs of repabr and maintenance which It is thc dity of ths Corporz:lon o undertake,
In¢luding: .

{l)' malntanance of landscaping, walks 2nd mﬂng, snow  removal ahd, ficter
‘collcction, and ‘

Sy malntenance of interior and exterior “portlons of bulldings comprising Commen

{n
{1y

Elsments including Limited Cormmén E!cmems except . where .the annexed
.—,‘_,Declu:tlon peavides for the owner of a “unlt to rcpalr and malnuln the same;

contribu:inm to the resarve fund to be uub!khed pummt 1o S 36 ‘of the Act;

all sums of money roquired by the Corpornion for thc 1cqu!siﬂon of retantion of real

. property or Intérests thorein -for the- use -and en}wment of the pmpcrty or for the

.acquisition, repair, ‘maintenance ‘or replacemmt of the persuna! pmparty for use and

) 3

(m)

(n) o

‘;Corpuntion.

onjnymant h or abwt the Common Elemunu,

:II soms of momy pald or payahlc by ﬂm Cnrpora:lon w© any znd all parsams, any Airm o

‘.‘corpontlon employed by the Corporation, - Ity duly: aut.horlzcd agents, sarvants and

emloyns for the purposo of performing my o all the dutles of the Carporn]on.

“alt sums uf money . ruqutrod w be pald on :.ccount of rezlty :ues (Includin: locil -
- improyement charges} levied- a;alnst the propeny until’ :uch time a3 such Taxes are

Iovlnd :.galmt each Unit'
tha‘cﬁsltvt-af obtalnlng md malnta[nlng f[dclity bond:- ‘and’
the cost of borrcwlng munmf for the purpose of c:u'rying uut the objects znd dutiei of the
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: Unlt‘B-, Lovel 1 I C -FI3 SlmtS

;'—Unn 14 Lm: r',_l LT
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Unlt 2 Leveld o s Lo e le, Shee: 3o,
- Usit 22, Levell '
;Unit23 Lmli"f R T % sm:s
Unit 24,. Lavell h ' o
 both lnc[usfve and ;.
- -Units: | ta) 24, .Lavu[ 2
beth inclusive:

" Utilts 5 to-i4
both’ inclusiva, Units *

SCHEDULE "F7 TO DECLARATION

. -LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

-Unit o Unifts ﬁavlﬁgr SR o P “Part of Commeh Elements for
. Exclusive Use of Part- . - ST :Exclusive Use of Ownars of -

of Common Elements-- - .. "~ - . "One or More Units; as.
R - : - 0.7 Desigmated on Shéets 3 & 4
“of Part 1 of the Description

~ Unit 1, Lovel | T EL Shest 3

st 5, Levet t - - - = FS. Sheet3

Unit 6, Lovel | | ' F6, Shest3
U'nAit_r?, Leye!-l_ o B I . F1, Saeet3 7

Uit 8, Levetl _ . iF8,:Sheet3 -

=

Unit 9, Lovell ' _ ) F9, Sheet 3
Unit 10, Level | - E I Fi0, Sheet 3

Unit T, Level 1 PN, Sheet 3

. Unit 12, Level | : ' . F12, Sheet 3

‘A',-F“ Shm 3
vait s, Level 1 FIS&RIS Sheet 3; 5|5 ot 4
Unit 16, Le{aau"” o FI5, Sheot3 .

Uhit 17,. Lmzr- T R Sheet 3

| Unit 18, Lml b Fs, Sheetd -

Unlt 19, Loval 1 S T e, sheara

una':'zo." Lovel] . : - on snms'

.' F2‘2 Shaet 3

o ‘Fz4 Sheet3

Unite § to 24, Lavei o

ovel'l, " =-—.", el ""'E-2jli:d'£—3, Sheet 3

16 to 24, Level |, ‘both
Inc!uslve Units 1 to~

24, Level 2, both’
inclusive

C--i Shnet 3, '
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SCHEDULE G T0 DECLARATION

-:nd-

SCHEDULE C 10 TSME SHARING AGREEMENT

] A.SSUMPTION AGREEMENT ‘

' -Thls Agracment rnadt thls g dayof - . , (980G, . ’

BETWEEN-

- '(hér(;inaftnr called the "As_s'léneu") -
- zrui - )
'LAGOON “CITY - MANAGEMENT SERV]CES :

CLTDR, v corpurnlon 1ncorpor;nad under .the
hws of the Provlnce of Ontarlo,

{Rereinafter c:llod the 1Mxnuer')

RECITALS
'WHEREAS_:_
I S D (the “wprasont Tirna Share __(}wn'&r:'}' has
herntoforo besn the Owner of an Undivided Interest in- Valt- , Levsel 2. Simcos
’ Condom!rtium Pr:n Nn.' T equl to a T 95 Intarest thero!n, as 1 tenant tn common,
2. By rcuon uf an Agroemunt (the "Tlrna Sharlng Amamunt') datad the . day
of a CT9. ) Notlce of which 13 ragmared In the Land Tides Divislon of Simeos -
zs No. .~ ', [and of an Ad!:areme Agroement dated the |/ day uf T 219, Notloe -
_of whick-1s_reglstered I "g11d Land -Tittes Divisfon as Mosw < ' * "] [md of pravious
Astumptlon ‘Agraement(s) dated . ", Notice{1) of which are regstersd
In sald Land Th.ios‘Divlsion a3 No.{s)- ], the present Time Share Owner

‘Is ‘sntitled to- me‘ sxclustvn posses:lon md use- of the ‘Unit- thrcaghout “the - term- and during

Wuck[s) No.(s) . -as" deflded  and: "described . In¥ the - Tiwe: Sharing
Agreament nnd Is not entitiad o po:sass, usu ot occupy the Unlt ;t" thur“ﬂmrdur}urthe-
anm.- ) - oo e e

3. The existing Time' Share Owncr is’ dasirous of [samng] [dlsposlng af] “nis
Undivided. interost to the Assignes snb]act to the provisions of the Time Sharing Agreoment, h
and hiis requested t.he rnqulsltc consant of the Man:;nr, who hu z;read to- g;r:.nt same” provldad
the Assigneo t rs into f.‘his Assumptlon Agreement. oo :

Pursuznt to'Socﬂon‘u“g 0! “of the Tifa* Stm-{ng Agrcement tha Mamgur Is- party
horeto b '[n Its permnal capatlty ‘as”, Mxm:er “and* as “agent: of " thn Time “Share” Ovmon,
Inducan’ Development Corpontlon lnd the Condomlnium Corpontion. I

WiTNESSETH !hat In cam!dentlen of the ccmant i nd"‘agi"ee‘n'gn'nts: hersln

conta(ned ' :ha arti




ARTICLE 1 -
- _"DEFINITION-S

Lol ’ in this Assumptmn Agrsnmcnt. .unfess otherwise de"'fnod, capitaiized terms have
tha meanlnzs described thersto in the Timu Sharing Agreement. : .

L ARTICLE I

ASSIGNEE'S AGREEMENT

2,01 ' The Asslgnoe reprasents znd Warrants © ‘that by sepzrxto lmtrumem(s] In. wrltIng-
[describe}- the Undivided lntnrast and the. right, title and Interest under the Time Sharing -
Agreement of the Time Shars Owter are being cnnvaybd .and assigned to the Astignes a¢ o’f the -

dua hersof sub}act to tha consen: of the Mmager.

2.02 Thc Ass[gnec cuvenants md zgrecs zs of from and zfttr the due herwf to
I assuma a.nd be. bound by-1l1" the covanants and zgreements of the existlng Time Shars Owner”
and to cbserve and perform his obllgztlons and _duties. conulned in the Time Sbarinx_

Agreament. T
.03 Wlthout I!mltlng tha forczolng

(z) Tho Astignea appolnts the Manager 2 his zttorney ‘or agent for purposes of
exscuting Land Titles consents and appllcations as provfdad in Section 3.04 nf the Time Sharlng
Agreament,

(b) The- Aiikgnai a;réoi to indémnffy the other Tima Share Owﬁers, Inducen, the
Manager and the Condeminium Corpornion and ezch of -them as prnvlded in Section 4 02 of tha.

Time: Slurlnx Agraernent

(c} The Au!gnoe agrees to pay when dua hls Propmienue Sh:.ra oi’ Shzrad Expenses,

hils Parsonal Expamu and fnrerest thereon, if any, and further agrees that the Undlivided
interest being acquired by the Assignee s subject to the lien and chargs upon the Undivided
Interest of the Assignee for such-amounts If unpaid as.provided In Sactlen 6.06 of the Time

Sharlng Agresment and with the romedies, cluding a power of-sale, . as sat: ot In’ Soctiom_‘
6.06 and 6.07 of the Time Sharing Agrnment 0 the same’ axtant n it such provlﬁcm wers

sat out. verbatim’ horeim

{d}: The Assfgnae consen!;s and agrus to the Mmgar and the Clu Adminls ator duty

performing the services and obligations nsimed 1o “them - respectively by the’ Time: Sharing -

Agreement and agrees not to Interfare with such performance; the Assignes’ furthar oonsenh

and agrees -to the Condominium Corporz:lon {or, falling It, Indugon) appoimlng ‘3 tsuccessor

Manager and/for Club Adm{nir.tntor whm ruqulred under Arﬂcles X :md XI of the Tims Sharing - _‘

Agresment; )

© {a} ' .The Assignes, in consideration of other Time Shzfé Owhoﬁ consenting to Article

XHI of :he YTime Sharing -Agreemant and of the’ “Mandger's consent hemxnder. hcraby'
Irrevocably  appolnts the  Manager as 'his proxy to voté in respect of his Undividad Interest .
the Unit on any and all’ occasfons 2t any ind- 2t ‘meatings of the men of the Condominlum or

of ‘members “of the Condomlnlum Carpornlun. ‘Provided that sch’ proxy shall’ be @stior no:
cast In 1ccordancc wiﬁl tho provfsions of Artlclc X!li of the TIme Shaﬂng Agresment. .

(f] Thc A:sfgme cxpressly conﬂrrns and adopts the raprasentat(un: and. wirrintles

made to other: Time, Shdre Owmiers® contained’ in”Sections” 14200 and 14,02 of “the: TImé Sharlng

) Agruement m thu same extunt a lf they'were et out verbatlm hereln

. (g) ' Tha Assignaa n:tprcssry 'conﬂrms and agram 2h:t 3
manner dispose . of -of perrnlt the - disposition “of - his Undivlded Tntarest- or “part “thereof “or

mortgage or charge. the’ same, nor wm he agreo or attcmpt to do so except ln compllancc with

T Artlcle XV of: the’ Tlme Sharing Agnamcnt.. R
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ART[CLE Hl

MANAGER 'S CONSENT

3.01 . ° Pursuant to Section 9. of the Deslara.tion, Article ' XV of the Time Sharing -

Agreemen: and the rastriction’ reglstered 2g:linst the titls to the Unit under Section 128 of The
Land Titles Act, the  Manager, - _consideration of the' Asslgnne 5 reprcsenutions ‘and

- agrsaments. in. Article Il hereof; hareby [consents- to- the [szle] {dlsposition} to the -Assignee:of

the Undivided Interest’as herein set: ou! znd agrees ta provlde such’ further uswances ‘of such

ART]CLE W
INTERFRETAT!ON :

4200 " The provlsiom of Anlc!a KVII uf tho Time | Sharlng Agreemom are hersby

‘incorpoutad herain_ by refersnce and shall ba applled [n Intarpretaﬂon of this Assumptlon'

Axrcemant mutatls munndis. _' o
) ' R
R A ] N
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the partles hersto have oxecuted thls Assumption

Agr.urhenf. L

SIGNED SEALED AND DELIVERED
In the msanca of -

[Asaignee s Signature)

.5,

)
)
) -
)
)}
}.
)
}
).
}
)
)

P.Gf: -

LAGOON CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

o
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4. R. #onth @

177 BELMORAL DRIVE
Chartered Accountant R e

L3V 5P7
TELEPHONE AND FAX
(705} 3276641

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of the
Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32

| have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32 as at
December 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of fund revenue and expenditures and cash
flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the organization's
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the organization as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and the changes in its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Orillia, Ontario J.R. Booth, Chartered Accountant
February 17, 2009 Licensed Public Accountant



SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008
Fumishing &
General Major Recreation Total Total
Fund Reserve Reserves 2008 2007
(Note 3}
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 183,518 5 - 5 - $ 183,518 $ 243,657
Short term deposit receipts 80,000 - - 80,000 -
Accounts receivable 2,416 - - 2416 3,890
Interfund receivables - - - - 3,357
Prepaid expenses and deposits 14,582 - - 14,582 18,144
280,516 - - 280,516 269,048
OTHER
!ncorporation costs 1,013 - - 1,013 1,013
RESTRICTED
Cash - 42 474 59,378 101,852 30,621
Short term deposit receipts - 200,000 - 200,000 344 450
Accounts receivable - 4,939 - 4 989 14,642
- 247,463 59,378 306,841 389,713
$ 281,529 $ 247 463 $ 59,378 $ 588,370 $ 659,774
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 37,856 5 - $ 22,500 $ 60,356 $ 71,302
Interfund payable - - - - 3,357
Deferred revenue - maintenance fees 249 080 - - 249,080 218,385
Deferred revenue - other 20,031 - - 20,031 19,976
306,967 - 22,500 329,457 313,020
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - 247 463 36,878 284,341 374,386
Unrestricted {25,438) - - {25,438) (27,632)
$ (25,438) 247 463 36,878 258,903 346 754
$ 281,528 $ 247,463 $ 59,378 $ 588,370 iﬁm
Approved on behalf of the Board: 7
{/’ Director Director

STATUTES OF INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS, note 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, note 2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, note 6

COMMITMENTS, note 7

BUDGET INFORMATION, note 8

4. K. Booth, ca




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Fumnishing &
General General Major Recreation Total Total
Budget Actual Reserve Reserves 2008 2007
( Unaudited )
REVENUE
Club fees $ 59,500 $ 57,388 $ - 5 - $ 57,388 $54,088
Exchange week sales 14,000 2,167 - - 2,767 7,080
Fees for service - 17,700 - - 17,700 -
Front desk services 9,900 9,900 - - 9,900 9,400
interest 12,700 12,408 8,730 1,723 22,861 28,567
Maintenance fees 817,505 833,133 - - 833,133 784,392
Rent - restaurant 35,200 34,872 - - 34,872 34,313
- rooms 40,000 35,003 - - 35,003 38,592
Sale of time share weeks 11,000 25,354 - - 25,354 5,583
Telephone 2,784 2,336 - - 2,336 2,539
Other revenue 9,950 9,216 - 587 9,803 14,143
1,012,539 1,040,077 8,730 2,310 1,051,117 979,597
EXPENDITURES
Advertising 3,800 3,701 - - 3,701 3,902
Bad debts, note 4 - 18,501 - - 18,501 15,130
Bank charges 8,900 13,813 37 68 13,918 9,311
Club 19,800 21,220 - - 21,220 18,861
Insurance 24,546 24 296 - - 24 296 23,835
Meetings 4,950 5,684 - - 5,684 5,353
Office supplies 17,000 20,650 - - 20,650 20,236
Professional fees 7,300 7,000 2,236 - 9236 10,316
Purchases 6,000 4,164 - - 4164 3,218
Repairs and maintenance, schedule 1 71,145 84,150 158,853 92,441 335,444 388,889
Property taxes 56,100 54,694 - - 54 694 53,440
Services and utilities, schedule 2 210,120 205,048 - - 205,048 202,401
Telephone 9,100 10,211 - - 10,211 9,102
Time share unit transfers, note 5 10,000 25,370 - - 25,370 17,258
Wages and benefits 380,570 386,831 - - 386,831 359,020
829,331 885,333 161,126 92,508 1,138,968 1,140,272
Excess of Revenue (Expenditure)
Before Reserve Fund Aliocations 183,208 154,744 (152,396) (90,199) (87,851) {160,673)
Reserve fund allocations (152,550) (152,550) 87,550 65,000 - -
NET REVENUE (EXPENDITURE)
FOR THE YEAR $ 30658 2,194 (64,846) {25,189) {87.851) (160,675)
Fund balance, beginning of year {(27,632) 312,309 62,077 346,754 507 429
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ (25,438) $ 247,463 $ 36,878 $ 258,903 § 348,754
3
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008:

Furnishing &
General Major Recreation
Fund Reserve Reserves 2003 2007
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net revenue (expenditure) for the year $ 2194 $ (64,846) $ (25,199) $ (87,851 $(160,675)
Net changes in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable 1,474 7,102 2,551 11,127 {423)
Prepaid expenses 3,562 - - 3,562 26,450
Interfund balance 3,357 - (3,357) - -
Accourts payable (21,476) - 10,530 {10,946) 17,630
Deferred revenue 30,750 - - 30,750 {9.491)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 19,861 (57,744) (15,475) (53,358) {126,509)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 243,657 300,218 74,853 618,728 745,237
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $263,518 $242 474 $ 59,378 $ 565,370 $ 618,728
WHEREOF:
Unrestricted
Cash $183,518 s - 5 - $ 183,518 $ 243,657
Short term deposit receipts 80,000 - - 80,000 -
Restricted
Cash - 42,474 58,378 101,852 30,621
Short term deposit receipts - 200,000 - 200,000 344 450
$263,518 $242 474 $ 59,378 $ 565,370 $ 618,728

4. 8. Banth, ca




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 Qj)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

1.

2.

STATUTES OF INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Corporation was incorporated without share capital under the Condominium Act of Ontario. The
corporation is to provide management (as defined in the Corporation's Declaration and Bylaws) for the
owners of the 43 residential time-share living units and 10 commercial units, located in Lagoon City,
Ontario. As a condominium corporation the company is exempt from income tax.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Fund Accounting

The corporation follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The operating fund reports the contributions from owners and expenses related to the operations and
administration of the common elements and inter-fund transfers to the reserve fund.

The reserve funds report-investment income and expenditures for the particular reserve fund. The
basis for determining the reserve fund’s requirement is explained in section {d) below. The
corporation segregates amounts accumuiated for the purpose of financing future charges to the reserve
fund in special accounts, for use only to finance such charges. Interest earned on these amounts is
credited directly to the reserve fund.

{b) Consclidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements inciude the financial statements of the company and its wholly
owned management company Harbour Lagoon Management Inc.

(c) Common Elements and Fumishings

The common elements and furnishings of the Corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners
and consequently are not reflected as assets in this financial statement.

(d) Reserve Funds
[. Fumishing Replacement Fund
As set out in the Time Sharing Agreement a furnishing replacement fund is maintained. The
manager, as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the annual contribution based on

the depreciation on all furnishings of the suites. These collections are deposited in separate bank
accounts and investments,

ll. Recreation Reserve Fund
A motion of the Board of Directors established the recreation reserve fund on July 26, 1992. The

manager, as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the contribution to the reserve
annually. These collections are deposited in separate bank accounts and investments.

5
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 @

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{d) Reserve Funds, continued
iil. Reserve for Major Repairs and Replacements

The corporation, as required by the Condominium Act, 1998, has established a reserve fund for
financing future major repairs and replacements of the common elements. Only major repairs and
replacements of the common elements and the cost of the reserve fund study is charged to the
reserve fund. Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance of the
operating fund.

The directors have used the reserve fund study from the Engineering firm of R.J. Burnside &
Associates Limited dated January 2008 and such other information as was available to them in
evaluating the adequacy of annual contributions to the reserve fund for major repairs and
maintenance. The corporation’s plan for contribution to the reserve fund for 2008 was $87,550
(2007 - $85,000) and the plan for expenditures from the reserve fund for 2008 was $158,684 (2007
- $35,900). The study projected a reserve fund balance on December 31, 2008 of $249,737 (2007 -
$313,108).

The reserve is evaluated on the- basis of expected repair and replacement costs and life
expectancy of the common elements and assets of the corporation. Such evaluation is based on
nurmerous assumptions as to future events.

{e} Short-Term investments

Short-term investments are carried at the lower of cost (including accrued interest) and market value on
an individual basis.

{f} Revenue Recognition

Maintenance fee revenue is recognized at the beginning of the underlying time-share week. Revenue
from merchandise sales is recognized at the time of shipment and service revenue is recognized when
the service is rendered.

{g) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

3. K. Bontl, ca




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 %ﬁ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

3. RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUNDS 2008 2007

The individual reserve fund balances as at December 31, are as foflows:

Furnishing Replacement ‘ $ 49,628 $ 68,981
Recreation 9,750 (6,904)
$ 59,378 $ 62,077

4. BAD DEBTS

Bad debt expense is the result of the corporation taking action for the non-payment of the current year
maintenance fees on time-share units, either by acquisition or by the manager registering power of
sale documents.

5. TIME SHARE UNIT TRANSFERS

As set out in the Time Sharing Agreement, the corporation has taken legal action for the collection of
maintenance fee aears. At December 31, 2008 there were 6 (2007 - 100) time-share units for which
the corporation had obtained title in the name of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32, or registered
power of sale documents and had not resold or leased the units. The corporation incurs legal fees on
the sale of time-share units registered in the name of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32. The
costs of these actions are recorded as an expense when incurred.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The corporation manages its Reserve funds investments based on its cash flow needs. The interest
rates on the high interest savings accounts and short-term investments held during the year varied
from 2.7% to 4.15% (2007, 3.7% to 4.15%). The average interest rate at the end of the year was
3.2% (2007, 4.0%) with investments maturing from between 78 and 443 days. Investments are
held in accounts and securities guaranteed by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Except as noted above, it is the board's opinion that the corporation is not exposed to significant
interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.

7. COMMITMENTS

a) The corporation has committed $13,726 from the major repairs and replacements reserve fund
for repairs to the building exterior.

b) The corporation has committed $24,714 from the furnishing replacement reserve fund for the
replacement of certain furnishings and fixtures in the suites.

3. B, Bootly, ca




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 @

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

8. BUDGET INFORMATION

The budget figures presented for comparison purposes are unaudited and are those approved by the
directors on October 31, 2007. They have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation.

3. R. Booth, ca




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 3]

STATEMENT OF REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

SCHEDULE 1
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND 2008 2008 2007
( Unaudited )
Beach and canal $ 0965 $ 10,535 $ 9,675
Cleaning, laundry and supplies 25,200 25,485 26,416
Exterior building 3,800 3,046 5,103
Grounds and yard 10,130 13,840 12,951
Heating and air conditioning units 750 381 955
Inierior 12,800 20,172 12,865
Suite 8,000 10,081 10,502
Television 500 610 1,135
$ 71,145 $ 84,150 $ 79,602
MAJOR RESERVE
Fence, stair and sewer repairs 5 - $ 2703
Fumiture and equipment replacement 8,341 3,507
Painting and landscaping - 7.931
Roof replacement : 22,375 57,155
Shorewall replacement 84,263 26,818
Window and door replacement 43,874 21,000
$ 158,853 $ 98114
RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE
FURNISHING REP|.LACEMENT RESERVE
Furniture and fixture replacements - suites $ 51,779 $ 101,231
Furniture and fixture replacements - restaurant 10,951 17,778
Fumiture and fixture replacements - common areas 26,284 -
Repairs and maintenance - 27,602
89,014 146,611
RECREATION RESERVE
Equipment replacement 689 2,116
Pool facility repairs and replacements 2,738 41,446
3,427 43,562
$ 92441 $ 190,173

4. R. Booth, ca
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 @

STATEMENT OF SERVICES AND UTILITIES EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

SCHEDULE 2
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND 2008 2008 2007

{ Unaudited )
Cable $ 14,100 $ 13,951 $ 13,641
Electricity 107,450 96,394 98,401
Propane 42530 47,403 45 596
Sewer services 27.540 27 477 26,746
Water services 18,500 19,323 18,017
$ 210,120 $ 205,048 $ 202,401

10
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. . 177 BELMORAL DRIVE
Professional Corporation ORILLIA, ONTARIO
L3V 5P7
TELEPHONE AND FAX
(705) 327-6641
AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Directors of the

Harbour Lagoon Management Inc.

! have audited the balance sheet of Harbour Lagoon Management inc. as at December 31, 2008
and the statements of revenue and expenditure, and reserve operations for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the organization's management. My
respensibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alsc
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

[n my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the organization as at December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and the changes in its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

DR borBhCA Puafussmal. (opaatr

J.R. Booth CA Professional Corporation, Authorized to practice public accounting by
The Institute of Chartered Accounts of Ontario.

Orillia, Ontario
February 17, 2010



HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC,

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009

Furnishing &
General Recreation Total Total
Fund Reserves 2009 2008
(Note 3)
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 95977 3 - $ 95977 $ 82,954
Prepaid expenses and deposits : 10,172 ~ 10,172 10,254
106,148 - 106,149 93,208
OTHER
incorporation costs 1,013 - 1,013 1,013
RESTRICTED
Cash - 46 448 46,448 59,378
$107,162 $46,448 $153,610 $153,598
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilties $ 32,958 3 - $ 32,958 $ 57,980
interfund payable - - - -
Due from Simeoe Condominium Corpaoration No. 3 48,798 - 48,728 38,705
Deferred revenue 25,401 - 25,401 20,031
107,157 - 107,157 116,716
SHARE CAPITAL, note 4 5 - 5 5
FUND BALANCES - 46,448 46,448 36,878
5 107,162 $ 485,448 $ 153,610 $ 153,589

Approved on behaif of the Board:;
A .
Knldl {‘}/

3
i

Director

STATUTES OF INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS, note 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, note 2
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, note 5
BUDGET INFORMATION, note 6

Dirgctor

7. R. Booth, ca




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC. 3(]

STATEMENT OF FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Furnishing &
General General Recreation Total Total
Budget Actuai Reserves 2009 2008
( Unaudited )
REVENUE
Club fees $ 57,700 $ 62685 $ - $ 62,685 $ 57,388
Fees for services - - - - 17,700
Front desk services 10,485 10,495 - 10,495 9,900
interest - - 797 797 1,723
Mznagement fees 752,902 757,639 - 757,639 716,481
Rent - restaurant 36,100 35,976 - 35,976 34,872
- rooms 36,800 30,568 - 30,568 35,003
Sale of time share weeks 10,000 8,870 - 9,870 25,354
Telephone 2,684 2,695 - 2,695 2,336
Other revenue 9,250 7,810 1,310 9,120 9,303
915,931 917,738 2,107 919,845 910,060
EXPENDITURES
Advertising 3,800 38617 - 3,617 3,701
Bank charges 3,000 8,263 63 8,326 6,488
Club 19,500 14,369 - 14,369 21,220
insurance 13,760 11,170 - 11,170 13,108
Meetings 2,200 2,817 - 2,817 2,653
Office supplies 17,000 22,050 - 22,050 20,650
Professicnal fees _ 4 837 5,292 - 5,292 4,550
Purchases 4,000 3,301 - 3,301 4,164
Repairs and maintenance, schedule 1 76,660 72,324 62,474 134,798 176,591
Property taxes 57,500 55,381 - 55,381 54,694
Services and utilities, schedule 2 212,120 194,853 - 194,853 205,048
Telephone 8,000 10,201 - 10,201 10,211
Time share unit transfers, note 5 10,000 29,505 - 29,505 25,370
Wages and benefits 412 554 414 595 - 414 585 386,831
845,931 847,738 62,537 910,275 935,259
Excess of Revenue (Expenditure)
Before Reserve Fund Allocations 70,000 70,000 (60,430) 9,570 (25,199)
Reserve fund allocations (70,000} 70,000 70,000 - -
NET REVENUE (EXPENDITURE)
FOR THE YEAR $ - - 9,570 9,570 (25,199)
Fund balance, beginning of year - 36,878 38,878 62,077
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 3 - 46,448 45,448 36,878

7. R. Booth, c.a




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Furnishing &
General Recreation
Fund Reserves 2009 2008
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net revenue (expenditure) for the year $ - $ 9570 $ 8,570 $ {25,199)
Net changes in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable - - - 6,441
Due to/from Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32 10,093 - 10,083 54,422
Prepaid expenses and deposits 82 - 82 3,562
Accounts payable (2,522) {22,500) (25,022) {10,9486)
Deferred revenue 5,370 - 5,370 55
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 13,023 (12,930) 93 28,335
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 82,954 59,378 142,332 113,997
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 95977 3 46,448 $ 142,425 $ 142,332
4
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HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The company is incorporated under the Ontario Corporations Act and provides management services for
the owners of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32 in accordance with the Time Sharing Agreement
of November 9, 1879. Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32 solely owns the corporation. As the
corporation is operated on a not for profit basis for the benefit of the owners of Simcoe Condominium
Corporation No. 32 it is exempt from income tax.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Accounting

The corporation follows the fund basis of accounting. The operating fund reports the management
activities performed for Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32.

The reserve fund for fumishing replacements reports allocations of revenue to the reserve and
expenditures for replacement of suite furnishings. The basis for determining the reserve fund's
requirement is explained in part (c) below.

The reserve fund for recreation reports allocations of revenue to the reserve and expenditures for
repair and replace of club facilities. The basis for determining the reserve fund's requirement is
explained in part (c) below.
{b} Common Elements
The corporation holds title to the common elements in trust for the time-share owners of Simcoe
Condominium Corporation No. 32 in the proportion of their undivided interest in the units and
consequently are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.
{c} Reserve Funds
l. Furnishing Replacement Fund
As set out in the Time Sharing Agreement a furnishing replacement fund is maintained. The
manager, as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the annual contribution based on
the depreciation on all furnishings of the suites. These collections are deposited in separate bank
accounts and investments.
Il. Recreation Reserve Fund
A motion of the Board of Directors established the recreation reserve fund on July 26, 1982, The

manager, as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the contribution to the reserve
annually. These collections are deposited in separate bank accounts and investments.,

J. R. Booth, ca




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC. 26}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
{d} Revenue Recognition

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the
related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate
fund when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and
collection is reasonably assured. Revenue from services are recognized at the time the service is
rendered. Rental revenue is recognized at the first of the month or week the rental occurs.

(e) Donated assets and services

Donated services are valued at their fair market value at the time of the contribution or at the cost that
the Organization would have otherwise had to pay for the service if easily determined. Volunteers
contribute their time to assist the Organization in carrying out its various activities. Volunteer
contributions are not recognized in the financial statements because of the difficulty of determining
their fair market value.

{f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes avaiiable in the future.

{(g) Financial Instruments

The Organization classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories based on the

purpose for which the asset was acquired, the Organization’s accounting policy for each category is as

follows:

(i) Assets held-for-trading
Financial instruments classified as assets held-for-trading are reported at fair value at each balance
sheet date, and any change in fair value is recognized as an excess of revenue (expenditure) in the
period during which the change occurs, transaction costs are expensed when incurred.

(i) Loans, receivables and other financiai liabilities

Financial instruments classified as loans, receivables and other financial liabilities are camied at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Transaction costs are expensed when incurred.

In these financial statements, accounts receivable and grants receivable have been classified as

loans and receivables. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities have been classified as other
financial fiabilities.

9. R. Booth, ca.




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC. LFO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

3. RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUNDS 2009 2008

The individual reserve fund balances as at December 31, are as follows:

Fumnishing Replacement 3 35594 $ 27,128
Recreation 10,854 9,750
S 46,448 $ 36,878
4. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized: Unlimited number of common shares
Issued: 5 common shares 3 5 3 5

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The corporation manages iis Reserve funds investments based on its cash flow needs. The interest
rates on the high interest savings accounts and short-term investments held during the year varied
from 1.05% to 2.7% (2008, 2.7% to 4.15%). The average interest rate at the end of the year was
1.05% (2008, 2.7%) with the funds held in a high interest bank account. Investments are held in
accounts and securities guaranteed by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Except as noted above, it is the board's opinion that the corporation is not exposed to significant
interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.

6. BUDGET INFORMATION

The budget figures presented for comparison purposes are unaudited and are those approved by the
directors on October 22, 2008. They have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation.

9. R. Booth, ca




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC.

H

STATEMENT OF REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

SCHEDULE 1
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND 2009 2009 2008
( Unaudited )
Beach and canal $ 11,060 10,535 $ 10,535
Cleaning, laundry and supplies 25,000 20,366 25,485
Exterior building 2,800 1,625 3,046
Grounds and yard 13,800 11,5629 13,840
Heating and air conditioning units 500 - 381
Interior 15,000 19,352 20,172
Suite 8,000 7,870 10,081
Television 500 1,047 610
$ 786,660 72,324 $ 84,150
RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPILACEMENT RESERVE
FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE
Furniture and fixture replacements - suites 26,097 $ 51779
Furniture and fixture replacements - restaurant 4,195 10,951
Fumiture and fixture replacements - common areas 13,305 26,284
43,597 39,014
RECREATION RESERVE
Equipment replacement 1,808 689
Pool facility repairs and replacements 15,918 2,738
Tennis facility repairs 1,151 -
18,877 3,427
62,474 $ 92441

9. R. Booth, ca.




HARBOUR LAGOON MANAGEMENT INC. @

STATEMENT OF SERVICES AND UTILITIES EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

SCHEDULE 2
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND 2009 2009 20038

{ Unaudited )
Cable $ 14,370 $ 14,374 S 13,951
Electricity 98,000 94 854 96,394
Propane 49,950 35,805 47 403
Sewer services 28,800 28,251 27,477
Water services 21,000 21,569 19,823
$ 212,120 3 194853 $ 205,048

J. K. Booth, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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; ; 177 BELMORAL DRIVE
Professional Corporation ORILLIA ONTARIG

L3V 5P7
TELEPHONE AND FAX
(705) 327-6641

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of the .
Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32

| have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Simecoe Condominium Corporation No. 32 as at
December 31, 2010 and the consoiidated statements of fund revenue and expenditures and cash
flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
organization's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all materiai respects, the financial
position of the organization as at December 31, 2010 and the resulis of its operations and the
changes in its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

IR b CA Profossiomal Coporaiim

J.R. Booth CA Professional Corporation, Authorized to practice public accounting by
The Institute of Chartered Accounts of Ontario.

Orillia, Ontario
April 19, 2011



SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010
Furnishing &
Generai Major Recreation ~ Total Total
Fund Reserve Reserves 2010 2009
" (Note 4)
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 240,296 5 - $ - $ 240,296 $ 194,706
Short term deposit receipts - - - - 30,000
Accounts receivable - - - - 325
Prepaid expenses and deposits 16,068 - - 16,066 14,494
256,362 . - - 256,362 239,525
OTHER
Incomperation costs 1,013 - - 1,013 1,013
RESTRICTED
Cash - 125177 64,157 189,334 109,732
Short term deposit receipts - ‘ 116,950 - 116,950 207,737
Accounts receivable - 1,860 - 1,860 4 987
- 243 987 64,157 308,144 322 456
$ 257,375 $ 243,987 $ 64157 $ 565,519 $ 562,994
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 64,781 $ - $§ - $ 64,781 $ 35350
Deferred revenue - maintenance fees 261,072 - - 261,072 222 263
Beferred revenue - other 18,721 - - 18,721 25,401
344 574 - - 344 574 283,023
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - 243,987 64,157 308,144 322,456
Unrestricted {87,199) - - (87,199) {42,485)
$ (87,199) 243 987 684,157 220,945 279,871
$ 257,375 $ 243,987 $ 84,157 $ 565,519 $ 562,994
Approved on Vélf of the Board:
Z ///r' \/i/ ; j;;linbéz-/ \/"'y M/U
/ P / Dlrector Du;eetbrf -

L

STATUTES OF INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS, note 1
GOING CONCERN, note 2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, note 3

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, note 7

BUDGET INFORMATION, note 8

9. R. FBooth, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Furnishing &
General General Major Recreaation Total Total
Budget Actual Reserve Reserves 2010 2009
{ Unaudited )
REVENUE
Club fees $ 63,100 $ 84,188 $ - $ - 64,188 $62,685
Exchange week sales 6,500 5,764 - - 5,764 7,444
Front desk services 10,810 10,810 - - 10,810 10,495
Interest 6,500 4,845 4,109 666 9,620 13,752
Maintenance fees 881,299 881,350 - - 881,350 869,323
Rent - restaurant 37,756 37,923 - - 37,923 35,876
- rooms 45,900 38,760 - - 38,760 30,568
Sale of time share weeks 10,000 38,145 - - 38,145 9,870
Teiephone . 2,000 1,895 - - 1,895 2,695
Other revenue . 9,600 10,397 - 155 10,5562 9,620
1,073,465 1,094,077 4,109 821 1,099,007 1,052,428
EXPENDITURES
Advertising 10,000 10,044 - - 10,044 3,617
Bad debts, note 5 1,829 39,379 - - 39,379 28,515
Bank charges 10,000 16,085 40 70 15,185 16,248
Club : 15,100 14,318 - - 14,318 14,369
Insurance 23,418 23,440 - - 23,440 22,350
Meetings 4,600 2,553 - - 2,553 5,623
Office supplies 20,000 18,295 - - 18,295 22,050
Professional fees 7,727 7,427 - - - 7,427 12,017
Purchases 3,700 4,080 - - 4,060 3,301
Repairs and mainienance, schedule 1 68,650 73,897 128,972 43,042 245911 198,735
Property taxes 57,600 55,739 - - 55,739 55,381
Services and utilities, schedule 2 206,350 205,684 - - 205,684 194 853
Telephone 9,800 10,238 - - 10,238 10,201
Time share uni transfers, note 6 25,000 73,053 - - 73,053 29,505
Woages and benefits 421,055 432,697 - - 432 697 414,595
884,929 985,908 128,012 43,112 1,158,033 1,031,360
Excess of Revenue (Expenditure)
Before Reserve Fund Aliocations 188,536 108,168 {124,903) (42,281) {59,026) 21,068
Reserve fund allocations (152,882) (152,882) 92,882 60,000 - -
NET REVENUE (EXPENDITURE) '
FOR THE YEAR $ 35654 (44,714) (32,021) 17,709 {59,026) 21,088
Fund balance, beginning of year {42,485) 276,008 46,448 279,971 258,903
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ (87,199) $ 243,987 $ 84157 5 220,945 $ 279,971
3
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net revenue (expenditure) for the year

. Net changes in non-cash working capital items

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

WHEREOF:

Unrestricted
Cash .
Short term deposit recaipts .
Restricted
Cash
Short term deposit receipts

Furnishing &
General Major Recreation

Fund Reserve Reserves 2010 2009
$ (44,714) $ (32,021) $ 17,708 $ (59,026) $ 21,088
325 3,127 - 3,452 2,093
{1,572) - - (1,572) 88
29,422 - - 29,422 {24,997)
32,129 - - 32,129 (21,447)
15,580 {28,894) 17,709 4,405 (23,195)
224 706 271,021 46,448 542,175 565,370
$240,296 $242 127 $ 64,157 $ 546,580 3 542,175
$240,296 $ - $ - $ 240,296 $ 194,706
- - - - 30,000
- 125177 64,157 189,334 108,732
- 116,850 - 116,950 207,737
$240,256 $242 127 $ 64,157 $ 546,580 $ 542,175

9. R. Booth, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

1. STATUTES OF INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Corporation was incorporated without share capital under the Condominium Act of Onfario. The
corporation is to provide management (as defined in the Corporation's Declaration and Bylaws) for the owners
of the 43 residential time-share living units and 10 commercial units, located in Lagoon City, Ontario. As a
condorninium corporation the company is exempt from income tax. '

2. GOING CONCERN

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles that apply to a going
concern. Under the going concern assumption, a company is viewed as being able to continue its operations
into the foreseeable future and realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations.

As a result of the significant number of time-share weeks that have been returned to the corporation during
2010 and subsequent to the year end, there is doubt as to the appropriateness of this assumption. The
accumulated deficit of $87,199 at December 31, 2010, combined with the projected uncollectable maintenance
fees in excess of $200,000, will probably result in a significant increase to the 2012 maintenance fees. As the
number of unit-weeks returned increases, the costs of operating the corporation are recovered from fewer
weeks, thus increasing the cost per week.

The corporation collects the majority of the maintenance fees for the year during the first two months of the
year. As at the date of these statements, management is of the opinion that the corporation had collected
sufficient funds to operate for the 2011 year, assuming no confributions are made fo reserve funds. The
corporation’s ability to continue as a going concem depends on its ability to coliect sufficient maintenance fees
from owners and lessees to cover the annual operating cost of the corporation.

These statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption was not
considered appropriate. Management is of the opinion there are sufficient financial resources for the
corporation to continue operations into 2012, allowing time for the corporation to take actions to mitigate the
effect of the condifions and facts that raise doubt as to the appropriateness of the going concern assumption.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Fund Accounting
The corporation follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The operating fund reports the contributions from owners and expenses related to the operations and
administration of the common elements and inter-fund transfers to the reserve fund.

The reserve funds report investment income and expenditures for the particular reserve fund. The basis
for determining the reserve fund’'s requirement is explained in section (d) below. The corporation
segregates amounts accumulated for the purpose of financing future charges to the reserve fund in special
accounts, for use only to finance such charges. Interest earned on these amounts is credited directly to the

reserve fund.

7. R. Moath, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 : "m

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —~ continued
{b} Consolidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the company and its wholly owned
management company Harbour Lagoon Management Inc.

{c) Common Elements and Furnishings

The common elements and furnishings of the Corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners
and consequently are not reflected as assets in this financial statement.

{d) Reserve Funds
1. Furnishing Replacement Fund

As set out in the Time Sharing Agreement a furnishing replacement fund is maintained. The manager,
as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the annual contribution based on the
depreciation on all furnishings of the suites. These coilections are deposited in separate bank accounts
and investments,

fl. Recreation Reserve Fund

A motion of the Board of Directors established the recreation reserve fund on July 26, 1992. The
manager, as a shared expense to the operating fund, determines the coniribution to the reserve
annually. These collections are deposited in separate bank accounts and investments.

lIil. Reserve for Major Repairs and Replacements

The comoration, as required by the Condominium Act, 1998, has established a reserve fund for
financing future major repairs and replacements of the common elements. Only major repairs and
replacements of the commen elements and the cost of the reserve fund study is charged to the reserve
fund. Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance of the operating fund.

The directors have used the reserve fund study from the Engineering firn of R.J. Bumside &
Associates Limited dated January 2008 and such other information as was available to them in
evaluating the adequacy of annual contributions to the reserve fund for major repairs and maintenance.
The corporation’s plan for contribution to the reserve fund for 2010 was $92,882 (2009 - $90,177) and
the plan for expenditures from the reserve fund for 2010 was $75,400 (2009 - $92,882). The study
projected a reserve fund balance on December 31, 2010 of $308,631 (2009 - $286,674).

The reserve is evaiuated on the basis of expected repair and replacement costs and life expectancy
of the common elements and assets of the corporation. Such evaluation is based on numerous
assumptions as to future events.

The corporation has not performed a comprehensive reserve fund study within the & year timeframe
since the completion of the previous comprehensive study, as required by the Condominium Act.

6
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32 60

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ continued

{e} Short-Term Investmenis

Short-term investments are carried at the lower of cost (including accrued interest) and market value on an
individual basis ‘

{f) Revenue Recognition

Maintenance fee revenue is recognized at the beginning of the underlying time-share week. Revenue from
merchandise sales is recognized at the time of shipment and service revenue is recognized when the
service is rendered.

(g) Donated assets and services

Donated assets and services are valued at their fair market value at the time of the contribution or at the
cost that the Organization would have otherwise had to pay for the service if easily determined. Volunteers
contribute their ime to assist the Organization in carrying out its various activities. Volunteer contributions
are not recognized in the financial statements because of the difficulty of determining their fair market value.

{h} Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

(i) Financial Instruments

The Organization classifies ifs financial instruments into one of the following categories based on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired, the Organization’s accounting policy for each category is as
follows:

(i)

(i)

Assets held-for-trading
Financial instruments classified as assets held-for-trading are reported at fair value at each balance

sheet date, and any change in fair value is recognized as an excess of revenue (expenditure) in the
period during which the change occurs, transaction costs are expensed when incurred.

Assets held-fo-maturity

Financial instruments classified as assets held-for-trading are carried at amortized cost using the
effective inferest method. Transaction costs are expensed when incurred.

in these financial statements, short-term investments and investments have heen classified as assets
heid-to-maturity.

J. K. Booth, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
{i} Financial Instruments
(iil) Loans, receivables and other financial liabilities
Financial instruments classified as loans, receivables and other financial liabilities are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Transaction costs are expensed when

incurred.

In these financial statements, accounts receivable have been classified as loans and receivables.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities have been classified as other financial liabilities.

9. R. Booth, ca.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

4. RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUNDS 2010 2009

The individual reserve fund balances as at December 31, are as foliows:

Furnishing Replacement $ 44,984 $ 35,504
Recreation 19,173 10,854
$ 64157 $ 46,448

5. BAD DEBTS

Bad debt expense is the result of the corporation taking action for the non-payment of the curent year

maintenance fees on time-share units, either by acquisition or by the manager registering power of
sale documents. :

6. TIME SHARE UNIT TRANSFERS

As set out in the Time Sharing Agreement, the corporation has taken legal action for the collection of
maintenance fee arrears. At December 31, 2010 there were 134 (2009 - 68) time-share units for which
the corporation had obtained title in the name of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32, or registered
power of safe documents and had not resoid or leased the units. The corporation incurs legal fees on
the sale of time-share units registered in the name of Simcoe Condominium Corporation No. 32. The
costs of these actions are recorded as an expense when incurred.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The corporation manages its Reserve funds investments based on its cash flow needs. The interest
rates on the high interest savings accounts and short-term investments held during the year varied
from 1.05% to 3.65% (2008, 1.05% to 3.65%). The average interest rate at the end of the year was
1.65% (2009, 2.7%) with investments maturing from between 55 and 83 days. Investments are
held in accounts and securities guaranteed by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Except as noted above, it is the-board’s opinion that the corporation is not exposed to significant
interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.

8. BUDGET INFORMATION

The budget figures presented for comparison purposes are unaudited and are those approved by the
directors on October 22, 2009. They have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation.

Ef. R. ﬂﬂﬂfb, CA.




SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

STATEMENT OF REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

SCHEDULE 1
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND 2010 2010 2009
( Unaudited }
Beach and canal - $ 10,800 $ 10,535 $ 10,535
Cleaning, laundry and supplies 20,800 20,153 20,366
Exterior building 1,300 2,912 1,625
Grounds and yard 11,750 14,424 11,529
Hesting and air conditioning units 500 - -
Interior 15,000 15,882 19,352
Suite 7,300 . 9,500 7,870
Television 1,000 401 1,047
$ 68,650 $ 73,897 $ 72,324
MAJOR RESERVE
Exterior building repairs $ 1,024 $ 89,
fire code replacements 62,657 -
Landscaping and parking lot maintenance 8,741 -
Plumbing repairs 51,090 26,336
Roof repairs and repiacement - 3,765
Shorewall replacement 5,460 -
Window and door replacement - . 24885
3 128,872 $ 63,937
RECREATION AND FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE
FURNISHING REPLACEMENT RESERVE
Furniture and fixture replacements - suites $ 19,128 $ 26,097
Furniture and fixture replacements - restaurant 15,803 4,195
Furniture and fixture repiacements - common areas 1,428 13,305
36,359 89,014
RECREATION RESERVE
Equipment replacement 721 1,808
Pool facility repairs and replacements 5,962 15,818
Tennis facility repairs - 1,151
6,683 3,427

$ 43,042 $ 82441

10
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SIMCOE CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 32

STATEMENT OF SERVICES AND UTILITIES EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

SCHEDULE 2
BUDGET
GENERAL FUND . 2010 2010 2008

{ Unaudited )
Cable . $ 14,800 $ 14,293 3 14,374
Electricity 105,250 99,602 04, 854
Propane 34,900 39,845 35,805
Sewer services 29,100 29,240 28,251
Water services 22,300 22,704 21,569

.$ 206,350 $ 205,684 $ 194,853

11
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HARBOUR INN VOTES TO SELL 2011 SCC32
AS AT: 27-Sep-11 # of weeks
per unit
URNIT YES VOTES % of INTERESTE UNIT YES VOTES % of INTEREST 101 4
101 35 72643 201 38 77.483 102 4
102 38 73.104 202 45 86.967 103 6
103 30 58.341 203 35 69.621 104 11
104 Y4 70.545 204 38 74.803 105 7
105 38 72.229 205 42 82.954 106 13
106 39 70.935 206 39 78.59 107 9
107 39 75.729 207 38 77.872 108 7
108 43 82.077 208 40 78.751 109 5]
109 37 72735 209 39 71.258 110 11
110 35 66.647 210 34 64.452 111 9
111 36 77.023 211 42 78.408 112 9
112 38 75.339 212 41 7476 113 13
113 33 63.761 213 36 B57.614 114 8
114 40 75.566 214 - 36 73.542 115 5
115 37 71.607 2156 36 70.299 116 13
115 45 88.283 216 36 67.728 117 4
117 37 76.403 217 40 75935 118 11
118 33 62.764 218 38 74.002 119 9
119 33 62.308 219 -39 75.549 201 3
220 36 71.375 202 9
221 37 726811 203 0
222 42 79.327 204 2]
223 37 75.226 205 5
225 37 68.322 208 12
Total Wks 703 Total Wks. 921 207 4
208 10
209 8
# OF UNITS WITH 26 WEEKS OR MORE THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43 210 9
(REQUIRE 35 UNITS TO = 80% OF UNITS) 211 12
' 212 10
# OF UNITS WITH OVER 50% INTEREST THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43 . 213 11
214 9
: 215 10
YES VOTES FROM OWNERS 1255 57.228% 216 12
YES VOTES FROM SCC 32 369 16.826% 217 12 -
TOTAL YES VOTES 1624 74.054% 1624 . 218 7
i 219 ]
NO VOTES FROM OWNERS 60 2.736% 220 4
221 11
TOTAL NUMBER OF WEEKS 2193 222 10
223 6
225 8
TOTAL - 369
This is Exhibi. reforred fo in the
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HARBOUR INN VOTES TO SELL 2011

AS AT: 11-Jul-11
UNIT YES VOTES % of INTERESTH UNIT YES VOTES % of INTEREST
101 35 72643 201 38 77.483
38 73.104 202 45 86.967
30 58.341 203 35 69.621
37 70.545 204 38 74.803
38 72.229 205 42 82.954
39 70,935 206 39 78.59
39 75.729 207 38 77672
43 82.077 208 40 78.75%
37 72.735 209 39 71.258
35 66.647 34 64.452
36 77.023 42 78.408
38 75.339 212 41 74.76
33 63.761 36 67.614
40 75.566 35 73.542
37 71.607 215 36 70.299
45 88.283 218 36 B87.728
37 76.403 217 40 75.935
33 62.764 218 38 74.002
33 62.308 219 39 75.549
220 36 71.375
36 71.619
42 79.327
223 37 75.226
225 37 68.322
Total Wks 703 Total Wks 920
# OF UNITS WITH 26 WEEKS OR MORE THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43
(REQUIRE 35 UNITS TO = 80% OF UNITS)
# OF UNITS WITH OVER 50% INTEREST THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43
YES VOTES FROM OWNERS 1254 B7.182%
YES VOTES FROM SCC 32 369 16.825%
TOTAL YES VOTES 1623 74.008% 1623
NO VOTES FROM OWNERS 60 2.736%

TOTAL NUMBER OF WEEKS

2193
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URGENT MESSAGE TO HARBOUR INN OWNERS

As President of Harbour Inn and Resort Club I want to make all owners aware of the erisis facing us now.

Harbour Inn is in a difficult financial situation primarily due to unpaid maintenance fees over the last few
years and the cost of legal fees to repossess and sell weeks. In 2010 Harbour Inn accumulated 178 weeks
through repossessions. Right now we have 134 weeks that are not sold which could result in unpaid
maintenance fees for those in 201 1. Currently we have approximately $67,400 in unpaid maintenance fees
for 2010. Our accumulated deficit from previous years is $45,485. These shortfalls will result m an
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT OF APPROXIMATELY $112,000 at December 31, 2010. This presented
us with a major challenge, as we must include this amount in the budget for 2011.

This year legal costs soared due to utilizing Quit Deeds and Power of Sales on units that were in arrears.

47

Quit Deeds and Power of Sales have been the practice for many years. This has become financially
prohibitive and we have decided not to repossess unpaid weeks in the future. Unpaid maintenance fees
will stay on the ledger of each owner as a debt, accruing interest, and the owner shall have no right to use
the unit until payment is made i full.

Many other factors affected operating expenses, notably building maintenance issues and the infamous
HST. (Pleasc see notes on page 2)

During a review of our Risk Assessment this year with our Chartered Accountant / Auditor Jack Booth, it
became clear that drastic action would be necessary to maintain Harbour Inn as a viable timeshare resort.
Although approximately 40 of the weeks owned by Harbour Inn bave been sold or leased this year, we
cannot keep up with the number of weeks coming back each year because of unpaid maintenance fees.

IT IS ESSENTIAL THAT WE CLEAR THE FISCAL DEFICIT GOING INTO 2011.

Consequently, 2011 Maintenance Fees will increase 13.64% to $450.87 for a studio and $538.50 for a
one-bedroom. We understand that this is a large increase, but it is the only option given the
circumstances. This will allow us to operate on a sound footing going forward TF ALL OWNERS PAY
THEIR MAINTENANCE FEES!

In the event that a large number of owners do not pay their fees the Board of Directors will call for an
early Special Meeting of Owners and ask the owners to vote on selling Harbour Inn.

The Board has asked the staff to forego wage increases for 2011. We will reduce the hours that the Tennis
Court will be heated during the winter in order to save propane costs. Eliminating Quit Deeds and Power
of Sales will result in major savings. The maintenance staff has put timers on some exterior lighting and
programmable thermostats on the two furnaces in the pool area to reduce electricity usage at night.

On the positive side, the Fire Alarm System is up to Code and the building retrofit is complete. Most of
the plumbing under the building has been replaced. Many elements of Harbour Inn are new, such as many
windows and sliding doors, furnaces in the pool area, ice machines, etc. Mary and her staff took on the
challenge of maintaining the landscaping this year and did a wonderful job that saved owners a lot of
money after the Board decided the quotes for professional landscaping were just beyond us.

Harbour Inn is a wonderful place in which tm(ﬁm%priwmwgﬁ&{cw%gg%m fees for
2011 in order to keep using this unique faciligﬁ-%%ﬁi@lple timeshare. /te_o (eoodTona

--------

On behaif of the Board of Directors and Staffw~ i before me, his JVURROERONY i NP

Gary Shaw, President day of ..conene '

FOR TAKING AFFIDAVITS

A COMMISSION ?



CHANGES IN 2011

Our new Insurance Company’s Underwriter has permanently closed all suite fireplaces,
as they are no longer up to code.

Reserve Fund Study will commence in 2011 depending on maintenance fee payments
being received.

In an effort to reduce costs, only emergency repairs will be made.

The Monday morning “Get Acquainted” meetings have been cancelled.

Y VvV ¥V ¥

Replacement of furnishings and renovations are on hold.

Contributions to the refurbishing and recreation funds have been significantly reduced to
keep the 2011 maintenance fees from being more than a 13.64% increase.

The amount allocated for unpaid 2011 maintenance fees is based on approximately 200

_ weeks, which includes the 134 weeks on hand.

Tennis court hours during the winter will be from 9am to 5pm daily and heated on
Tuesdays and Thursdays only.

The pool will be closed at 10pm instead of 11pm.

Oil & Vinegar has been removed from all of the suites to reduce damage to the kitchen
cupboards: )

> Lewis Property Maintenance has received the snow-ploughing contract for 2010 /2011.

> Daily rental rates to owners only during the winter are $65.00 for a studio and $75.00 for

a one-bedroom suite between weeks 1 to 17 and 43 to 50. Weeks 51 and 52 rent at
$79.00 and $89.00.

The Township of Ramara will hold the Smnnnmg Program for residents for 8 weeks at
the Harbour Inn commencing January - 8% and ending February 26, 2011 on Saturday
mornings. The pool is closed to all owners, guests and members until 2pm.

Please pay your maintenance fees!

Keep Harbour Inn viable!



S FOLLOW-UP TO URGENT MESSAGE TO OWNERS

@
2011 Maintenance Fee Collections:

At the time of writing (January 13, 2011), the Harbour Inn has collected 65.4% of the 2011
maintenance fees or $676,455.81 of the $1,033,449.21. In comparison to 2010, the fees collected by Jan.
13/10 were 71%. We understand that some of you have been waiting to hear if the Harbour Inn will
remain viable. This is our request that you pay your maintenance fees as it is looking very goed. Ii you
have not paid the 2011 maintenance fees, we urge you to do so immediately. You will find the first
reminder notice enclosed; if you pay before February 1, 2011, you will avoid the 2% interest charges.

Some of our owners have asked very good questions regarding their RCI status, and the overall well being
of Harbour Inn. When the Urgent Message to Owners was written in October 2010 the expectation of the
collections of the 2011 maintenance fees was unknown. It was appropriate that your Board of Directors,
through Gary Shaw, President, notify all owners of what might happen, given the outstanding,

uncollected maintenance Tees for 2010 and  the Tegal fees that had beem incwred to take back weeks by
repossessing and attempting to sell some of those weeks.

Consequently, the Board made some very sound, if difficult, decisions for 2011. For example, the
Harbour Tnn will not pay the legal fees to repossess weeks from owners who decide not to pay the 2011
maintenance fees. We will continue to do Quit Deed transfers but it will be your cost if you wish to
release the ownership to the Condominium Corporation. The cost to do this is $400.00 per week. A
transfer by Quit Deed may not be possible if all parties are deceased; a mortgage was not discharged with
Inducon prior to their bankrupicy or one party is deceased requiring that a Survivor’s Application: be
registered. That procedure costs approximately $400 over the quit deed fee. Also, Harbour Inn will not be
pursuing those that do not pay with Power of Sale notices.

If you do not pay the 2011 maintenance fees, the Harbour Inn will have your week/s removed from your
RCI account as you aré in breach of your contract with them; will not allow you to use the week/s at the
Harbour Inn and will use your week/s without obligation or notification to you. This is spelled out very
clearly in the Timeshare Agreement that each of you signed when you purchased your week.

As deeded owners, you own a percent of interest in the Inn pertaining to the week number in a unit. ¥ the
Board feels strongly that we will not have sufficient funds to continue to the end of 2011, a special
meeting will be called urging owners to vote to sell the property. If the Harbour Inn s sold, each deeded
owner will receive proceeds from the sale depending on the percent of interest owned. All deeded owners
would have an opportunity to vote even if you have not paid the maintenance fees. But be assured, if the
decision to sell the Harbour Inn carries, those that have not paid their maintenance fees, will not receive
all of the proceeds due to them. The maintenance fees will be taken from your portion at that time. Asit
is, we do not believe that this is going to oceur, so to those who have not yet paid their maintenance fees,
and do miot intend to, you will Temain as an outstanding account on the books and future years
maintenance fees plus interest will accumulate, until you pay them or sell your week/s. Not paying places
a burden on the majority who have paid.

Please pay your maintenance fees to keep Harbour Inn viable!

RCI Enhanced Weeks System:

On November 15, 2010, RCI enhanced their week’s system so owners will know the trading value of each
week for exchange purposes.

This system relies on the Supply, Demand and Utilization of the week that you are depositing with them.
You must deposit your week at least 9 months ahead of time and up to 2 years in advance to achieve
100% of your trading value. We encourage you to deposit one year in advance so that you'are assured of
receiving all of the trading value possible for your week. As long as you have paid the current years



®

> paintenance fees, the Harbour Inn will allow the deposit of your week for future years. Harbour Inn’s —~
weekly trading values range from 9 (low demand) to 29 (high demand). O
When you are ready to do an exchange against your week, you will be able to look for resorts that offer
the same irading value or less. Remember, that when you confirm an exchange within 30 days, the
trading value drops to incredibly low numbers at resorts that have inventory available. If you do not have
cnough trading power and want to confirm an exchange further out than 30 days, you can combine
deposits (as many as you need) for a fee of $116 Canadian to RCL. This may give you an opportunity to
travel to a resort that you would never be able to get to. '

I you do not use all of your trading value, RCI gives you a credit for the difference.

Exchange Week Sales:

We have weeks available that have been deposited for 2011 and most have a trading power of 9. You can
purchase one of these weeks from uvs for $75.00 + HST = $84.75 and we will transfer it into your RCI

account—We-have-had-a-few-owners purchase-up-to-4-of these-weeks and-they-will-be-combining all -of--
them with RCI for $116. The cost to purchase 4 exchange weeks = $339 + the cost to combine all 4 of
these weeks with RCI is $116 for a total of $455 which is close to the amount for a studio week’s
maintenance fee at Harbour Inn for 201111 You would then achieve a trading value of 36, which should
get you an awesome cxchange or two with RCI! If you do not use all of your trading value, you are
credited with the difference. Exchange fees are to be paid to RCI and range in price from $200 to $222
Canadian, updated December 10, 2010. :

Please call Mary Beitz, 705-484-5366 to arrange for the purchase of Exchange Weeks. We will need
your Visa or Master Card and your RCI account number.

Room Rental Rates:

We have reduced the room rental rates and, as owners, you receive $10.00 off of the regular rate
depending on the week. Owners daily rates range from $65 to $125 per night + HST. The restaurant is
closed on Mondays and Tuesdays at this time of year. Give us a call to reserve a night or two to get away
from it a1l (7 05—484-5366), Our rates are posted on our website www harbourinnresort.com under Rental
Info.

Rental Agreement Forms:

The rental apreement form has been updated as of October 2010, The Harbour Inn will retain 4)% of the
total rental income. This form can be found on our website www.harbourinnresort.com under Rental
Info. Scroll to the bottom of the page then click on the Rental Form. We must have a signed rental
agreement on file and ask that you read the “Conditions of Rental” before submitting your completed
form.

To quell the ramours flying around;

The Harbour Inn is not going bankrupt!
We are not letting our staff go!
Chef Konstantine’s Restaurant is open!



HARBOUR INN VOTES TO SELL 2011 SCE32

AS AT: 27-Sep-11 # of weeks
. per unit
UNIT YES VOTES % of INTEREST} UNIT YES VOTES % of INTEREST 101 4
101 35 72.643 201 38 77.483 102 14
102 38 73.104 202 45 86.967 ] 103 8
103 30 58.341 203 35 69.621 104 il
104 37 70.545 204 28 74.803 105 7
105 38 72.229 205 42 82.954 106 13
1086 39 70.835 208 39 78.59 107 9
107 39 75.729 207 38 77.672 108 7
108 43 82.077 208 40 78.751 - 109 6
109 37 72.735 209 39 71.258 110 11
110 35 66.647 210 24 64.452 111 9
111 36 77.023 211 42 78.408 112 9
112 38 75.330 242 41 74.76 113 13
113 33 6§3.761 213 36 67.614 114 8
114 - 4() 75.566 214 36 73.542 115 )
115 37 71.607 215 36 70.299 1186 13
116 45 88.283 216 36 67.728 117 4
117 37 76.403 217 40 75.935 118 i1
118 33 62.764 218 38 74.002 119 9
119 33 62.308 219 39 75.549 201 3
. 220 36 71.375 . 202 9
221 37 72611 ’ 203 0
222 42 79.327 204 9
223 a7 75226 205 5
. 225 37 68.322 206 12
Total Wks 703 Total Wks g21 207 4
208 10
' . 208 8
# OF UNITS WITH 26 WEEKS OR MORE THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43 210 9
(REQUIRE 35 UNITS TO = 80% OF UNITS) 211 12
212 10
# OF UNITS WITH OVER 50% INTEREST THAT VOTED YES TO SELL 43 213 11
214 9
215 10
YES VOTES FROM OWNERS 1255 57.228% 216 12
YES VOTES FROM SCC 32 369 16.826% 247 12
TOTAL YES VOTES 1624 74.054% 1624 218 7
219 g
NO VOTES FROM OWNERS 60 2.736% 220 4
221 11
TOTAL NUMBER OF WEEKS 2193 222 10
223 6
225 8
TOTAL 369
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Cushman & Wakefield Ltd.
Valuation & Advisory

33 Yonge St., Suite 1000

Toronto, ON M3E 159

(416} 862 0611 Tel

(416) 359 2613 Fax
www.cushmanwakefield.com

September &, 2011

Mr. David Bray

¢fo Harbour Inn & Resecrt Club
1 Paplar Crescent

Brechin

Cntario LOK 180

i°(

via email: dibray@rogers.com Y S .
Dear Mr. Bray,
Re: Valuation and Sale of the Harbour Inn & Resori Club
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration.

You have indicated that you are acting on behalf of the majority of the unit owners in the Harbour Inn & Resort
Ciub to investigate the possible sale of the resort; as part of this process, you require a firm with specialized
knowledge of the hospitality industry to help you identify the value of the resort and, possibly, to assist you in
finding a purchaser.

BACKGROUND

The Harbour Inn & Resort Club ("HIRC") is & condominium timeshare resort project with approximately 43 guest
rooms located on the shore of Lake Simcoe, approximately 10km east of Orillia. The resort was developed in
1979 and structured on a timeshare basis with individua! timeshare owners having the rights to occupy their units
for a week at a time. The resori has additional amenities including a restaurant (leased to a third party), as well
indoor swimming pool, sun deck and other supporting facilities and services. Each owner has the option of
becoming a member of Resori Condominiums intemational and participating in that firm's global timeshare
exchange program,

You have indicated that the majority of unit owners have now decided that it may be the right time to sell the
resort. As part of this process, you need 1o better understand the value of the resort in the current market
conditions, and how such a transaciion can best be realized.

In the following pages, we describe the reasons why we believe Cushman & Wakefield is the right firm to help you
through this process, and we also describe the scope of work and methodology we plan to undertake in order to
achieve your goals. It is important to note that in determining the value of the resort for a possible transaction, you
have indicated that we are to assume the rescrt should be considered fully marketable — that is, all units are
available without constraint and that the resort would have no legal or other structural issues impinging on s
value or marketability as a fes simple acquisition.
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WHY CUSHMAN & WAXEFIELD LTD.?

Cushman & Wakefield Lid. is the Canadian division of Cushman & Wakefield, now one of the top three global
hospitality real estate piayers by team size. Our expertise is grounded in alt aspecis of the hotel industry; we are
retained to provide expert, independent opinions regarding virtually all matters relating to the development and
operation of hospitality anterprises 1o owners, investors, lenders, developers and others. We cover all hotel and
leisure sectors, while our experience of mixed-use developments means that we understand how to create the
right mix of uses to maximize hoth value and access o brands.

While based in Canada and with considerable experience across the country, the group has also compleied many
other assignments in the United States, throughout the Caribbean, in Europe, Russia, and Africa, allowing us to
apply knowledge of best practices around the world to our current projects. Our group has worked with most of
the national hotel management companies in Canada, as well as many of the leading international chains. Our
clients enjoy an unbeaiable combinaticn of large-scale resources, a broad range of international experience,
specialized industry knowledge, key relationships and global infrastructure to meet hospitality needs in any
market. We have the toois and perspeciives {o efficiently and thoroughly analyze issues and to prepare
recommendations that will provide realistic and achievabie results. While giobal in our firn's expertise and
experience, our Canadian operaticn remains targeted towards the domestic hotel industry. Our Hospitality &
Gaming Group is headquarterad in Toronto and our workioad necessarily focuses on hotels throughout Canada.

Part of the success of our Hospitality & Gaming Group is clearly attributable to our extensive knowledge and
understanding of the industry, buili up over many years of working on market studies, development strategies,
financing and other assignments relating o successful hotel projects. Equally important, however, is our
unwavering commitment fo our clients io provide professional, independent advice based on well-researched and
complete information, and to provide that advice in a timely manner consistent with our agreements.

OBJECTIVE

During our discussion, you indicated you really need to understand what price you could command in the event
that the unit owners decided o proceed with a sale of the resort. With this in mind, we suggest we provide you
with a ‘brokers opinion of value' — this is a report that provides you with our formal review and analyses of the
resort, and concludes with our estimate of what we believe a purchaser would be willing to pay given the current
market and investment conditions. Wiih this in mind, our objective would be to:

Bring together from within Cushman & Wakefield the best feam to identify a supportable and appropriate ‘sale’
price and then to facilitate the saie of the resort. Similar to recent hotel assignments, we are currently acting as
exclusive advisor to PwC in the sale of ihe Hotel Quinte in Belleville. We also completed sale of the Yorkland
Hotel (now Days Hote! and Conference Centre Toronto Don Valley) and the sale of the Valhalla Hotel to a

residential developer. We will work with key members of our various disciplines to reach deep into the local
investment commurity.
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A selection of other completed hotel transactions is provided in the addendum to this proposal, including the
former Ramada Guelph (now Bast Western). We have also included in another addendum our qualifications
document for our Hospitality & Gaming Group as well as resumes of our practice leaders.

HOTEL VALUE OPINIOH

There have not been a lot of hote! sales from which to draw comparisons within the last few months. A number of
hotels and resorts that have traded this year were subject to some level of distress and are not, therefore, truly
comparabie to the Harbour Inr & Resort Club.

In order to provide you with our estimate of value, we would need to tour the property in order to better
understand the number and quatity of facilities offered, their condition and the overall ambiance of the resort. This
would include inspections of various types of guest accommoedations, as well as the public areas, restaurant, bar,
back-of-house areas, as well as mechanical rooms. We would also need to meet with you (or a designated
representative) in order o discuss any siructural, mechanical or environmental issues.

We need to obtain from vou the following information that would allow us to better understand the property, its
performance and ifs likely valus o a prospective purchaser:

¢« Date of opening,

¢ Site plan with dimensions,

= Legal description of the property {Property Identifier #, Plan #, Lot # etc.),

s Name of registered titlaholdsr,

» List of easements, encumbrances and charges on titie,

s Size of building footprint - sq. 1,

e Copies of last 3 vears fax assessment. Details as to any special tax concessions,

« Date of original construction of building. Date of majer additions efc.

+ Floor plans for each floor of the building,

¢ Property Inspection report (showing fype of construction, HVAC systems, fire control, elevators etc.),

» Room configuration showing # each type of room and typical room sizes (standard king, deluxe
double/double, 1-bedrom suite, etc.),

e Copies of licenses for each F & B outlet, showing licensed capacities. Hours of operation for each outlet,
* Subject hotel occupancy and ADR for last 3 years, as well as year-to-date,

* Market segmentation for last year (% demand from Ind. Corporate, Group Corporate, Ind. Leisure, Tour
Group etc.)

e Detailed Financiai Statements for at least the last 3 years, as well as year-to-date,
» Budget for current year as well as budget for next year,
» Capital expenditures for last 3 years. Current capital programs and plans for next 2 years,

o Copies of all major lsases and contract for services (ground/air rights leases, building leases, major
equipment ieases etc.),

» Copy of Management Agreement if aoplicable,
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¢ Top 5 corporate accounts and ithe number of room hights generated by each in the last two years.

The general mood of hotet operators and investors is positive with an optimistic outlook for continued fundamental
improvements and investment opportuniiies in the near term. We just put a hotel under contract within the
Golden Horseshoe (Cnizrio} that presented axcalient potential performance through re—posutlonmg compared to
current performance resuiting in a low going-in vield,

We have not yet had the opportunity io review detailed financial results for the Harbour Inn & Resort Club, but
believe in a markeat environment where the mood and outlook is positive then growth should follow. Our belief is
that the resort has good upside potential and can generate positive results under the right type of ownership and
capital investment plan. it offers & nice mix of amenities and a good location proximate to a number of demand
generators.

MARKETING STRATEGY
in order to provide maximum exposure of the resort to the investment community, we recommend the following:
e Preparation of electronic and hard copy marketing material for distribution.

¢ Set-up of the slectronic data room for the resort that can be accessed by prospective investors once
qualified ang upon execution of the confidentiality agreement.

e Mass emaii communication within the broader Cushman & Wakefield network.

s Email distribution to our hotel invesiorfowner coniact database and general commercial property investor
and deveioper database [0 ensure maximum coverage.

« Secure ad space in the Globe and Mait and/or Toronto Star real estate sections to boost exposure.
¢ Direct phone call follow-up io ali investors that we believe are the ‘right’ profile buyer for the resort. This
profile includes the typical resori owner/operator that has experience in re-positioning assets of this type
parficuiarly those within the local area or region.
* Provide organized property tours with prospective investors that minimize business interruption.
« Timely follow-up on any and alt inquiries.
With many subjective value elements atiributed to the resort, we recommend marketing the asset without a price

and solicit feedback from the most aggressive market participants from the hotel investment community. This
approach eliminates the risk of creating & vaiue csiiing by allocating an asking price.

REPORTING

We are prepared to provide weekly reporting letiers o you that updates the status of the marketing strategy and
profile of interested investor groups from faunch through fo closing. The reporting will include notes from
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conversations with investors reiaied o the asset condition and pricing. Upon request, we can participate in
conference calls or prepare suspiemental status reports as needed.

FEES

Our fees for the site inspection, analyses and our determination of value will be $7,500. If we are retained to
undertake the sale of the property on your behalf, our fee will be 4% of the fotal sale proceeds, payable upon
successful completicn of a transaction. The cost of the valuation ($7,500) will also be credited to any fees eamned
through the sale of the property.

All reasonable out-ot-packet exnansas related to this assignment are to be reimbursed including any ads placed
in the media. Aiso, any and ail applicable taxes are additional.

If you are in agreement with the ferms of this proposal and wish us to proceed with the valuation component,
please sign a copy of this letier as your authorization for us to proceed. If you have any questions, please contact
me to discuss this cpporiunity in further detall. We look forward to working with you on this assignment.

Sincerely,
CUSHMAN & WAKEFIELD LTD.

Charles Suddaby MRICS CMC

Vice President

Hospitality & Gaming Group
chartes.suddaby@ca.cushwake.com

Phone Office 416.359.2407 Fax 416.358-2602

AGREED:

CLIENT: HARBOUR LAGOON MANSGEMENT

By: Date:
Name

Title:

E-maill Address/FPhone & Fax Nas.:
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Thank you for your thne,

Roger Selman
Brokér of Record/Owner
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September 22,2011

David Bray Director

Simcoe Condominium Corporation Ne 32

Harbour Lagoon Managénient Ihc.
1 Poptar Crescent, Lagoon City
Brechin, Ontario.
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In response to your request dated September5, 2011 for a Real Estite Agent to manage the
sale of your property.

As a Real Estate Agent F'will berworking on your behalf to acquire a sale suitablete you.d will
handle the Advertisement, marketing; listing [MLS}, market'to potential bivers and other
agents who may have buyers. | will orchestrate the showings, give updates to the Board and
negotiate.on your behalf. | will also provide advice to the Board,

You have requested specifies with respectto listings-and sales. { will ptovide as mich as
possible butwill have to consider the privacy of previsus:clients as bwill with your information.
Vhatever we discuss is between you and your Agent (V&) Release of information will have to
be mutually agreed.
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This is a list of séme current and previbustransactions have been involved in.

1. Orillia Curling Club: Handling the sale of the then current property and then
orchestratingthe tréation of a new facility. This invelved working with many
shareholders and shareholder rights, This would have similar iSsues with Timeshare
Dwners.

2. Condominiumcomplex; This Is a case where 44 unils are-heing pot up for sale as ablock.
They ate being sold by'the Cendominium Corporation asthey are ahead of the'martgage
company. This will be denaithmugfhﬂéhé courts. Thisto date has involved my
involvernent in advising the Court appointéd Condominitilm Representative; acquiving an
appraisal, promotinig the properties to the public and building a list of buyers for the
transaction when ayadilable. The buyers are of two types, seme working through me and
others working through othier agents.

3. |am handlingthe land huying-operations of an off shore group wha have at this paint
acquired approximately 1,500 acres. This'has been ongoing for gver 6 years and involves
negotiating, recommendinglegal advice, co-ordinating fand environmental tests and
maintaining ongoing-aide-tothe principlés. ‘

4. Overthe past 10 yeafs | have been arid still am workingwith & local group in helping
thetn acquire land, dispose of surplus land and the thaintaining of land acquited, | report
1o the group as a whole, giving advice, preparing land information, and following
through with their requests.

5. Warking with various major developers to acquire projects and aided in their
development, _

6. | have been hired through local lawyers to-wark for various municipalities to negotiate
purchases and sales of property that they were not ableto handle.

7. Lam quite often asked by agents inmy office and sometimes from othier offices to help:
them with & Commercial listing:

Advertisement and Profmotion.

The advertisement will be Internet, Newspaper, Commercial Magazines, MLS for
Conmercial listings. Internet listing:site foryour preperty, promotion to.other Agentsthrolgh
my contacts.

Time for salé

This depends on many things like sconbiity, asking ptice, is'the Sellerready and able to
sell, availability-to show. As 8 estimate for the sale of pruperty that | have élther been involved
inor observed, my estimate wouldl be six months'to 4 year. It could be sherter or longer.




Finding the Fight person with & vision forthé use of the property will determine afl of this. If the
sale requires negotiations with the township, environmental or ofhiers, then this-could be
extended. -

Commission and fees:

HST on the sale if-applicable would be paid by thé‘Bﬁyér,

Appraisal costs

Land transfer tax paid by the Buyer,

Each of the Buyer and Sefler to pay theirown Legal fees plus HST on the fees:
Commission which-would be shared with the each of the listing and selling agents and
their respective offices will be 5% of the sale price plus HST onthe commission.

6. Advertisement by the Agent will be paid by the Agent.

e oW

{ thank you fdr the opporttinity to apply.

Yours truly

Harpld Holmes

Sales Representative

Don Camnphell Real Estate Limited
36 Andrew:St S.

Orillia, Ontario L3V 5i1
705-325-1366.Office
800-488-8775

705-325-7556 Fax
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Harbour Lagoon Management Inc. and/or Simcoe it °in F%Mﬁ&éﬂ“%ﬁlber 32

(hereinafter the “Seller”) has authority to sell the property 51tuated in the Town of Brechin, in the
Province of Ontario, municipally known as Harbour Inn & Resort Club, located at 1 Poplar
Crescent (the “Property™).

1. Tn consideration of the listing for sale of the Property by Cushman & Wakefield Ltd.,
Brokerage (“CUSHMAN™), and CUSHMAN's agreement to use its best efforts to effect a
sale of the Property, the Seller hereby grants to CUSHMAN the exclusive right to sell the
Property for a period commencing January XX, 2012, and ending midnight, July 31,
2012 (the "Term"). It is understood that CUSHMAN will market the Property without a
price.

2. The Seller agrees to pay CUSHMAN a commission of four percent (4.0%) of the sale
price of the Property up to a pre-determined threshold (the “Threshold), on any sale
affected during the currency of this agreement from any source. For the portion (if any)
above the Threshold, a commission of three and one half percent (3.5%) will apply.

3. H.S.T. shall be payable on any commission paid to CUSHMAN by the Seller herein.

4. The commission shall be eamned by CUSHMAN in the event that during the Term: (a) the
Property is sold to a purchaser procured by CUSHMAN, the Seller or anyone else;
(b) any contract for the sale of the Property is entered into by the Seller; or (c) the Seller
contributes or conveys the Property to a partnership, joint venture or other business
entity. The commission shall be payable upon the completion of the sale of the Property.

5. The Seller further agrees that the Seller shall also pay CUSHMAN the commission if,
within ninety (90} calendar days after the expiration or termination of the Term, the
Property is sold to, or the Seller enters into a contract of sale of the Property with, or
negotiations continue, resume or commence and thereafter continue leading to a sale of
the Property to any person or entity (including his/her/its successors, assigns or affiliates)
with whom CUSHMAN has negotiated (either directly or through another agent) or to
whom the Property has been submitted prior to the expiration or termination of the Term.
CUSHMAN is authorized to continue negotiations with such persons or entities.
CUSHMAN agrees to submit a list of such persons or entities to the Seller no later than
ten (10) business days following the expiration or termination of the Term, provided,
however, that if a written offer has been submitted, then it shall not be necessary to
include the offeror's name on the list.

6. The Seller and CUSHMAN hereby acknowledge that this is an exclusive listing and that
CUSHMAN shall not be required to cooperate with any other agent in connection with its
exclusive listing. At the sole discretion of CUSHMAN, a third-party real estate agent
may be permitted to cooperate in the sale of the Property on terms which shall be
established by CUSHMAN and such cooperating agent; and, which terms shall not
require the Seller to pay any commission in addition to the commission set out herein.




10.

1L

12.

13.

14.

15.

Seller agrees that reasonable out-of-pocket costs associated with advertising the Property
in a national newspaper such as the Globe and Mail or National Post shall be reimbursed
to CUSHMAN. However, upon the successful sale of the Property and CUSHMAN is
paid its commission, CUSHMAN will reimburse the Seller for third party adverting costs
and the cost of the initial appraisal completed by its appraisal division.

The Seller agrees to co-operate with CUSHMAN in bringing about a sale of the Property
and to refer immediately to CUSHMAN all inquiries of anyone interested in the Property.
All negotiations are to be through CUSHMAN. CUSHMAN is further authorized to
advertise the Property if, in the opinion of CUSHMAN, such advertising would facilitate
the sale of the Property.

CUSHMAN acknowledges that any information provided to CUSHMAN by the Seller in
respect of the Property is on an “as is where is” basis. The Seller has not audited,
reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the
information.

CUSHMAN is authorized to accept a deposit from any prospective purchaser. The Seller
agrees that all deposit monies payable hereunder shall be paid into the frust account of
CUSHMAN. CUSHMAN shall have the right to deduct any commission payable
hereunder from the deposit monies it holds in its trust account on the closing or
completion of the transaction; and, any remaining balance of commission due and
payable to CUSHHMAN shall be paid by the Seller forthwith.

The Seller acknowledges and agrees that from time to time CUSHMAN may represent a
tenant in a dual agency relationship and the Seller hereby consents to such limited dual
agency wherein CUSHMAN maintains confidentiality with respect to each party’s
pricing intentions, corporate objectives and motivation.

The Seller declares, represents, warrants and certifies that it is the Seller of the Property
and that it has the authority to enter into and execute this Exclusive Sales Listing
Agreement.

This Exclusive Sales Listing Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
Seller and CUSHMAN and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations and agreements,
whether oral or written. In case of any inconsistencies between this Agreement and any
commlission provisions in the Agreement of Purchase and Sale, the provisions of this
Agreement shall govern and be paramount. No amendment or alteration of this
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless made in writing and signed by both the Seller
and CUSHMAN.

CUSHMAN hereby declares that the following representative of the company: Curtis
Gallagher, is insured as required by the Real Estate and Business Brokers Act (REBBA) and
Regulations.

This Exclusive Sales Listing Agreement shall be governed by and shall be subject to the
laws of the Province of Ontario.




: W

16. The Seller, by its signature below, acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is for a
term exceeding one hundred and eighty (180) days. Receivers
Initials

17. CUSHMAN acknowledges that this Exclusive Sales Listing Agreement and the Seller’s
acceptance thereof are subject to approval by the Ontario Superior Court of Justice.

The Seller hereby acknowledges receipt of an executed copy of this Exclusive Sales Listing
Agreement.

Dated at this day of ,2011.

XXX,

Harbour Lagoon Management Inc. and/or Simcoe Condominium Corporation number 32
(hereinafter the “Seller”)”.

and not in its personal capacity.

Per:

I have authority to bind the Seller

Print Name:

Dated at this day of , 2011.

Cushman & Wakefield Ltd., Brokerage (“CUSHMAN?”)
Per:

I have authority to bind the company

Print Name:
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2TR Bylaws Order
Transfer | Amendm | Bylaws | 4,5, 6, [T389266 Ont | Condo
PIN Unit Level |printed | Restriction ents 1,2,3]| 7,8 |Apt(Gen} Clean Water Lien Charge Other
55032-0001 1 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X
59032-0002 2 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X
55032-0003 3 1 X NONE NONE X A NONE X
59032-0004 4 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X
59032-0005 5 1 X 1132175 X X X [T32174 X LT38245
. LT217179
59032-0006 6 1 X LT27201 X X X LT27175% X LT217180
LT217181
LT217182
59032-0007 X 727175 X
7 1 X LT27201 X X LT217183
SC796612
9032 1
3 -0008 8 X LF27201 X X X LT27175 X LR ORDER
59032-0009 9 1 X 1127201 X X X LT27175 X LT33195
LT 217184
LT217185
L1217186 SC715397
59G32-0010 10 1 X 1727201 X X X LT27175 X LT217187
LR ORDER
LT217188
LT217189
{T217190
LT217191
X LT27175 X
5?032—0011 11 1 X LT27201 X X 17217193
58032-0012 12 1 X 11727201 X X X LT27175 X LT33067
' 11217192
59032-0013 k127175 X
13 1 X LT27201 X X X LT217194
59032-0014 14 1 X LT27201 X X X ET27175 X LT217195
59032-0015% 15 1 X NONE NONE X X 1132174 X _
: : LT44280
LT33545 -
59032-0016 16 1 X LT32175 X X X LT30312 X LT217196 LT33906 Partial
Discharge
17217198
59032-0017 LT2717 X
17 1 X LT31141 X X X 5 17217199 LT32422
LT36430
59(32-001 18 1 X 717 T2172
03 g LT27201 X X X LT27175 X L 00 LTA5442
59032-0019 19 1 X LT27201 X X X £T32174 X LT217202
LT217203
559032-002 20 1 X LT32175 X X LT35083
032-0020 T3 X LT344437 X LT217204 35
55032-0021 21 1 X LT34717 X X X LT34443 X
59032-0022 22 1 X LT34717 X X X 1734443 X LT38493
55032-0023 23 1 X LT34737 X X X LT34443 X LT47462
LT38450
- X LT34443 X
59032-0024 24 1 X LT34717 X X 3 1156053
59032-0025 25 1 X _NONE NONE X X NONE X 17217213
59032-0026 26 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X LT217214
59032-0027 27 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X LT217215
55032-0028 28 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X LT217216
59032-0029 29 1 X NONE NONE X X NONE X LT217217
59032-0030 1 2 X LT27201 X X X LT27175 X
59032-0031 2 2 X LT27201 X X X LT27175 X
¥i
55032-0032 3 2 X LT27201 X X X LT27175 X L137605

LT68629%




LT31855
59032-0033 4 2 X LT27201 X X X | 1127175 X 135055
59032-0034 5 2 X 1T27201 X X X | 1127175 X LT30028
LT217224
59032-0035 5 2 X LT31141 X X X | LT30312 X 217226
59032-0036 7 2 X 1127201 X X X | LT27175 X 1T217227
1T217228
59032-0037 8 2 X LT27201 X X X | LT27175 X 217229
59032-0038 9 2 X 127201 X X x | imngs X 1730221
59032-0039 10 2 X 727201 X X X | LT27175 X LT217232
59032-0040 11 2 X LT32175 X X X | LT32174 X
' LT217234
59032-0041 12 2 X LT31141 X X X | tT30312 X Toiross | L3397
59032-0042 13 2 X 1731141 X X X | LT30312 X 11217236 _
59032-0043 14 2 X LT27201 X X X | urenrs X LT43763
59032-0044 15 2 X LT34717 X X X | 134443 X LT217237
59032-0045 16 2 X LT31141 X X X | 130312 X LT217239 | LT42300
LT29822
59032-0046 17 2 X 1127201 X X X | r2717s X LT217240 | £T33217
LT40555
LT38486
59032-0047 18 2 X LT34717 X X X | LT34443 X tggi; 1739302 ;Toz:; (ﬁ
LT40564
59032-0048 19 2 X LT34717 X X X | 1134443 X LT40911
1T41933
59032-0049 20 2 X 1134717 X X X | LT34443 X LT217247 | LT56042
' LT276492
LT34803
59032-0050 21 2 X 1T34717 X X X | LT34443 X [T217240 | o002
LT38863
1743253
LT217251
LT217252
59032-0051 22 2 X LT27201 X X X | 127175 X 11717253
1T217254
' LT42337
LT42729
59032-0052 23 2 X LT34717 X X X | LT34443 X LT42732
LT42860
LT43243
59032-0053 24 2 X LT34717 X X X | LT34443 X




Bankruptcy and Insolvency Records - Bankruptey and Insolvency (BIA) Records

Office of tha Supertintendent  Duregy du surindersiant

of Bankruptey Canada des fajllies Canada
fuy Aepay of ) LI i v
Inclustry Sarads d'Ehasnte Saneda

Bankruptcy and Insolvency Records (BIA) Search Results |
Résultats de la recherche dans le Registre des dossiers de faillite et d'insolvabilité
(LFI) ' -

2011-12-19
Search Criteria | Critéres de recherche : Name | Nom = Inducon Development Corporation,
Province = Ontario, Name Type | Type de nom =
_ Business | Entreprise
Reference | Référence : dda5694

A search of the Office of the Superintendent of BankrUptcy records has revealed the following
information, for the period 1978 to 2011-12-15, based on the search criteria above-mentioned.

Une recherche dans les dossiers du Bureau du surintendant des faillites a permis de trouver
Iinformation suivante, pour la période allant de 1978 a 2011-12-15, selon les critéres de recherche
susmentionneés,

L TR S TR

BIA Estate Number |

Numéro du dossier en vertu de la LFI :
BIA Estate Name | INDUCON DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Nom du dossier en vertu de la LFI : .

Birth Date | Date de naissance :

31-256257

Province : , Ontario | Ontario

Address | Adresse : 235 YORKLAND BLYD,, NORTH YORK, Ontario,
M214Y8

Estate Type | Type de dossier : BANKRUPTCY | FAILLITE

Date of Proceeding | Date de la procédure : 1992-01-31

Total Liabilities* | Total du passif¥* : $161,791,406

Total Assets* | Total de I'actif* : $134,251,000

First Meeting of Creditors | 1992-04-16 10:30:00

Premiére assemblée des créanciers @

Discharge Status | Statut de la libération :

Effective Date | Date d'entrée en vigueur :

Court Number | Numéro de cour : 31256257

* As declared by debtor | Tel que déclaré par le débiteur

TR L, . b B B e wn s n wa L L eV MGG L, o SO TR HE s

Appointed Trustee or Administrator | KPMG INC.

Syndic ou administrateur nommé :
Responsibie Person | Personne responsable : GUTFREUND, IZYDORE GEORGE
Address | Adresse : Bay Adelaide Centre , 333 Bay Street, Suite 4600,
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, K5H255 .
Telephone | Téléphone @ - 416-777-3054
Fax | Télécopieur : 416-777-3364
Trustee or Administrator's Discharge Date | s referred fo in the
Date de la libération du syndicou de - This 'SAEXhm : (_F"ﬁ_}v"«é,m -
'"administrateur : affidavit of /\/\"”‘""* Al S .
| A — |
o 2000
ONER FOR TAKING AFFIDAVITS
11 f . { Profaciing the Erotdger Nintdgrite
Canada | AR R

T oa e s T e e e B e P B e v f i aarath Tl n fnodb B sate himliceccianiA=NNNT 1o Hm 12192011
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Prowires ;
- Bl Charge/Morigage of Land
_—rm IR .
: Pom & — Lo Regictevion Reform A, 1984 : :
' ™ s 0 1 t i
{ ) Raghwy [ wenaTes [+ W Page % of peges ﬁﬁa ) g
i & 8 & 2 & 13} Proper Bigtk Proparty ]
]& e, Hwntifedz) Adational;
L GERTIFICATE OF RECEWFT Shooun L1
i
it LB Ao
Lions uN2T P393 R BinoRED ~ - e e R
z N 77 N R R e Bowrss 1500.00
A Tt it <,
. TRAR (8] Cgooviptlon .
Y . DER, LAND REGQSMR;E an undivided 1.822% interest
g COE = Mo 5% Unit 3, Level 2,
& Simeoe Condominium Plan No. 32
& Township of Hara o
2lme s 3, Ldggﬁlrg- County of Simcos Suigar g A
; FARGES, SAMITL = fovames:
| seemon, Londo Pk shewe [
i} | Engeutions
E -
| CLEAR ¥ g
{ = | )
{8} This {5} Pedescrption 16 Seheduie fan 77 Trmmreieiatass Charged n
o New Gasoment | . Agdiionm - Fee Simpte
L Contsing FeGkech [ Doweriphion U] Partea L Other B2
B Dlinciord Ciamge Tored — 1 he FarIes sgrod 10 5a Hound by 1ho provaion n StEndard Gharge Terme fiad as Atimisr oL ang Bt
Shurgoria) haretsy acknoviacpsia) receipt of & coby of thase trma.
@) Fitryreuw DROWEGE . Cateul
werbrincioal "y <00 g o™ Fomm e wpsraman | Paee | half-yearly
Inmaresy ¢ ¥ ;%;QIPawmn! Eirst T Y 1M D
(o} Adwsment; § gg 5 1 05 (17 {9 Date o 17th monthly 0 Peymeni 1198510617
m!%ﬁ%&m : ?93’$135174n1§¥§$ tinet 287100 -
R T Eavrnan: inety-one ‘ Cevsrss 21 . 28
5y Datnce 1986 N N #p11 insurable valuoe Dot 1
(10} Axkinional Feovigiens
Provided that the Chargor when not in default nereunder shall have the
privilege of prepaying any amsunt of principal hereby securad at any time 1
withput notice or henus. 3
[ N
Sahpgure L—:/ 3
{1%1 Charpor(a) The chargor hamdy cherges the land 1o e chargen antd cortihies it ihe chargdr 1 st as sightoes yeers okl At it h
‘the property being charged has never been sgceupied by me. ang Ry Spouse as Dur..
matrimonial home. ’
Tha crargers) Btknovwisdgoiat s
Marmea{s)
.SHIER. .Helen

{62} Bomusr{s} of Chergie{sl  hareby conagmt (G RE IFAREACLION.
Regrmiesial Signatrads)

{19) Chemgasis) aoress v el ] . : [ T
for Bawvien .

| 11 Millmere Drive, Scarborough, Ontaric. MIG 2gayof ........... ,Qéf{' e e 204 e

1148} Chargeela} . :

L KIDDELL,. J,ame:&.
KIDDELL, Natalie e

on 3oint account

\ .

£ {15 Ghorgests) Addma ]
H dor Bervien

i

i\ 208 Lakose Avenue, Weston, Ontaric. MOP 1BS

{ (58 Aspumemant Rell Mgt Ty pon Map DSub Far i Fore

of Propony 43, 48,0001009169832: 085¢ 3| St tie | sz 57
177 Mauntenal Addrets of Bropariy TEi8) Doommant Prepgeed b

suite 205, Michael E. Reed §

| 1 Poplar Crescent. KENNY, BIGELOW & REED, g
! tLagoon City, Ontaric. | Barristers, 2tC., &

) E Box 1210, 23 Owen Streeil, g

BARRIE, Oatario.
_L4M SE2 Jijp Tl fe o |

Mesezomar uped (iobert, Limbed
Form L1395 (1R

- e R e i s
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Forsy 2 — Lol Feglstraan Refoms Act

Fﬁ'“ﬁéﬁ“ﬁ;ﬁ}fﬁ 't Charge/Morigage of Land O e

FE L DUDAL 0w
Py e BES

P
133 Beginey [ tand Tines 51 Tiﬁi Fege T of o poges P[O \J

Miw Froperty Idm!s&c—cs‘a

RS : catt)
Adkdtion & "b?f Ci‘m:%’?} f/ﬁf‘o;a

{3} Propary Bloek Propery
Tdesitilieris) : Agidbnsal
& 0
i + Sehedule 1
P~ = {43 Erincipet Amant 3
o = . 3 = . :
C I wooy p FIVE THOUSAND Deteres  5,000,00
- e o = : el B
L = = s it ) 5F Deecriptlon 3
i T gea & g
[+ [ R =
pra et Lo
B e g; ot Unit 20, Lebuel 2, Guatzie, Weok 38, Simcos
ol - £ o ominim Plan Mo, 32 RS AT pra AT B
bt ©
¥e)
53]

o
H gﬁemme D
Erecutions
Aadibant
Schedats
£{8) This a1 Redescription 118} Schectata for {7} Imteroat/Exinte Chasged
Cocurtant  New Ersemiont :' Zdditiona! Few Simple I's
i

Cortelne  PanSkeich [} { Descipbon {77 eames [} Ome ]

o7 77 AU, PoFe T

A

\.
({8) Stsnctard Charge Tenns — The ::vaﬂms Ng#2¢ 1o b beutd by 1 provisions i Slandard Charge Torms fled as number | &7 {

e

and the
Chasgor(s} hertdy adnowlodg{s) receipt of 5 copy of those tms
{8} Payment Provisions {5} Interest {c} Galeulstion

(a}if_;rg&ﬁ?ls 5,000.00 Rate NIL % par annum Pering anmually

JAd - Sawnené o st . HEOHE:
[£=3 Imen! ie} Daie an ayment I

gatn 11991 ‘o7 [ gz|" ped _ NIL pae ! 1999 o7 o2

Lasi

i} Pé h] !E h
® parme g0 m «32 O Bepment ML, Deiters §
fy Eafanee 1 ifsutance

Lo Date 11000 :g'i :02 ) full replacomnt value Datiars §

(8} Adctitionet Provisiest

“

Continued on
Sctsduie

The chargorsi ackreowisdpets] recsipt of 2 nys copy of this charge.
Namais)

. VICKERY, Bobart JANES.
{Martgagar}

{12] Spouse{s} of Charyurds} ¢ nereby consent {0 s ransaction

St aflhm;fs Exhibit... N

Dat: of Sigrature

...’refeﬁecf”ic in

" [¥43) CRargores Aodreay

sSworn be;fore e, this

for ecdce 204-10 Peter St., ¥, Orillis Ontario
\ n’:w af
({44} Chatgesfsf
VICKERY, Violetia Luc
Martgapeey o e }

{15) C?‘m‘qﬂh] hokdters
for Serce

373 GIURCHILE ROAD, APT. #3, PRESCOTY, CNTARTO. KOE 1TO

170

15)Muum!ﬂoﬂlﬁumbﬂ PO Mun i Mzp . Sub | Pat ifat:
43 48 i po0ioow Gog4s =] pem Fon

(m Munictps! Atdress of Property [ET]) Dcmnt?mpnradby: g -~

m
1 FOPLAR CRESCENT, Goedemondt Real Estate Limited Jg
LAGOON CITY, R.R. #1, ga i‘ssaoﬁ?a 9

AT, ario
BRB::!m CNTARID. LOK 180 LAN 34 E
J UE.I—J.g Tatal
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¥ St Golang
Fenm § — Land Boglimilos Refoan Ack, 1054

Page

{ Eddifienal Fropery Hbenlitens; andiof Gl (Atormestion

BANAGER'S CONSENT

Purguent to Seetlon § of the Beclarstion, Articie XV of the Time
Sharing Agreement snd the restrictions registered againzt the titls fo the Unit
under Seetion 128 of the Land Tites Act, the Hansger, in comglderafion of the
representations and sgreement in Ardele II hereof, hereby consenis i the
sale/trsnsfer of the Uadivided fnterest as herein set out and ggress {n provide
such further musurancer of such consent as usy he necessary.

Bruce !:ee, Hanager )
T HAE Ardeti¥y 7o 8l
THE Comerd |

it FOLHTI ]
AR Boan b 5 Caed BT

FOR OFFICE
USE DNLY

oo,

~

Rewseme nnd Glibert,
Yorm EFINSS {1785}

Anril, 1985




IN THE MATTER OF Simcoe Condominium Corporation Number 32
Applicant

Court File No.:

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

Proceeding commenced at Barrie

AFFIDAVIT OF MINA LAWRENCE
(sworn December 19, 2011)
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Patrick Lassaline

LSUC Number: 32935H
LEWIS DOWNEY TORNOSKY
LASSALINE & TIMPANO
Professional Corporation
Barristers & Solicitors

77 Coldwater Street East
Orillia, Ontario

L3V 1We

Tel. (705) 327-2600

Fax. (705) 327-7532
Lawyers for the Applicant



